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Stoffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial stotements and auditor’s report of the charitable
company for the year ending 31 August 2024. The Trust wos established on 1 September 2011 and was originally known
as Staffordshire University Acaderny Trust. During 2013/14 the Trust wos encouraged actively by the Deportment for
Education to sponsor schools in an Ofsted Category requiring a sponsor fed academy solution. At the end of June 2014
the company completed ogreements with the Department for Education (DIE) to convert to a Multidcoderny Trust
(MAT) enabling It to undertake the activities of odditional academies. On 20th June 2014 the company changed its
name from Staffordshire University Academy Trust to Staffordshire University Academies Trust.

On 31st August 2024 the Trust had 21 academies in the MAT, They were:

e Staffordshire University Academy: an 11-18 secondary schocl with 648 pupils on roll
»  Moargete Primary Academy: a 4-11 primary school with 287 puplis on roll

e John Wheeldon Primary Academy: a 4-11 primary school with 541 pupils on roll
e Perton Primery Academy: o 2-9 first school with 198 pupils on roll

s Littieton Green Community School: a 2-11 primary school with 372 puplls on roll
e Boney Hoy Primary Academy: a 4-11 primary school with 182 pupils on roll

« Tunsel Parkes CE Primary Academy; a 3-9 first school with 141 pupils on rokt

s StEdward's CE Academy Cheddieton: a 3-9 first school with 165 pupils on roll

s Charnwood Primary Academy: a 4-11 primary school with 196 pupils on rol!

«  StPeters CE Academny: a 3-9 first school with 43 pupils on roll

e St Augustine’s CE Academy: a 3-9 first school with 47 pupils on roll

« Al Saints CE Primary Academy Denstone: a 3-9 first schoo! with 6% puplls on roll
e St Luke's CE Academy: a 4-11 primary school with 209 pupiis on rall

e« Horton St Michael's First School with 68 pupils on roll

« Al Saints Primary Scheol: o 4-11 primary school with 44 pupils on roll

+ Stleonard's First Schoot a 3-9 first school with 68 pupils on roll

e Dove First School: a 3-9 first schoo! with 82 pupils on roll

s Church Eston Primary Schooi: a 4-11 primary school with 74 pupils on roll

e St Pauls CE First School: a 3-9 first schoo!l with 123 pupils on roli

e Little Aston Primary Scheol: a 4-11 primary school with 228 pupils on roll

e Westiands Primary School o 4-11 primary school with 209 pupils on roll

The Trust objectives, os set out in its Articles of Association, are:

1. To advance the public benefit of education in the UK by establishing, maintaining, managing and developing
schools offering a broad ond balanced curriculum by providing full time or part time education for children of

compuisory schoel age.
2. To promote the beneflt of the inhabitants of the area of where the academies are estoblished and its surrounding
area. The provision of facilities for recreation for individuals who have needs for such facilities by reason of their

socioeconomic characteristics, in the interest of improving their guality of life.
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

Staffordshire University Academies Trust is a company limited by guorantee and an exempt charity. The charitoble
company’s memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Trustees of Staffordshire University Academies Trust are also the Directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company Is known as Staffordshire University Acaodemies Trust.

Detoils of the Directors / Trustees who served during the year are inciuded in the Reference and Administrative Details.

As Directors / Trustees we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Staffordshire University Academies Trust has on
effective and cppropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such ¢ system is designed to manoge
rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable ond not
absclute assurance against material misstatement or foss.

The Trust Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibliity to the Accounting Officer for ensuring financial controls
conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
reguirements and responsibifities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Staffordshire University Academies
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Accounting Officer is responsible for reporting to the Trust Board
ony material weaknesses or breakdowns in Internal control.

b. Members’ liability

Each member of the choritable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are o member, or within one year after they cease to be o member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities controcted before they ceased to be o member.

c. Trustees' indemnities

In cccordance with normal commercial proctice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Directors and officers
from cloims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The insurance provides
cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

According to the Articles of Associotion, Staffordshire University, as sponsor, shall appoint up 1o 10 sponsor Trustees. It is
itseff a Member of the company. The Trustees may appoint ¢o-opted Trustees. The Trustees are Directors of the

charitable company for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 ond Trustees for the purposes of charity legislation.

The term of office for any Trustee shall be four years. Subject to remaining eligible 1o be o particular type of Trustee,
any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected.
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Training is provided by the CEO and the Clerk t¢ the Board of Trustees, to new Trustees upon appointment. New
Trustees are also made aware of the various commercially avaiiable training opportunities. The training and inducticn
provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary induction will Include training on
educational, legal, property and financial matters. All new Trustees will be given the opportunity to tour the Academies
within the Trust and have the chance to meet with staff and pupils.

All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, strategic plans, accounts, budgets, plans and
other documents they need to undertake their role as Trustees. There is ¢ bank of resources and training availoble for
Trustees to access on line that access is provided for by SUAT. This is alse available for members,

It is expected that enly a very small number cf new Directors / Trustees will be appointed each year. Any induction wili
be carried out informally and will be tailored to the specific individual.

f. Organisational structure

The Directors / Trustees are responsible for setting generat policy, adopting an annual plan ond budget, monitaring the
Academies within the Multl Academy Trust (*MAT™) by the use of budgets ond data on pupil cutcomes and making
major decisions about the direction of the Trust and its Academies, capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Trust Board should exercise its powers and functions with a view to fuffilling a largely strategic leadership role in the
running of the MAT, addressing such matters as:

s Policy development and strategic plenning, including torget setting to keep up momentum on scheol improvement
in afl Academies

s Ensuring compliance with legal reguirements

« Esteblishing and maintaining o transparent systern of prudent and effective internal controls

¢« Management of the Academies’ financial, human and other resources (in particular control over the spending
identified in the academies’ development plans)

+ Monitoring performance and the achievement of objectives, and ensuring that plans for improvement are acted
upon

s Helping the Acodemies be responsive to the needs of pupils and parents and stakeholders and making them more
accountable through consultation and reporting

s Setting the Acodemies stendards of conduct and volues

e Assessing and managing risk and ensuring sound management and administration of the Academies, and ensuring
that leaders and managers are equipped with relevant skills and guidance

+ Staff and pupil wellbeing

Staffordshire University Academies Trust has a Board of Directors/Trustees responsible for overseeing the strategic
direction and performance of the Acodemies within the Trust. The Senior Leadership Teams in each of the Academies
gre responsible for the implementation of strategy ond the doy to day operations of the Academy and are accountable
to the Trust through o Local Governing Body; called ¢ Local Academy Council (LAC). Each Academy has a dedicated
Education improvement Partner (EIF), provided by SUAT, 1o support the delivery of the education cims and objectives.

For 2023/24 the Board of Trustees delegated the day to day responsibility to the Accounting Officer for ensuring
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees’ Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

financial controls conform to the reguirements of both propriety and good financicl manogement. The Accounting
Officer, working with the Chief Fingnce Officer, the central team and each Academy's leader, controls the Academies at
an executive level implermenting the policies faid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them.

The Accounding Officer is personclly responsible to the Trust Board far:
s  Ensuring regulcrity and propriety

«  Prudent and economical administration

s Avoidonce of waste and extravagaonce

+ Efficient and effective use of available rescurces

« The strotegic direction of SUAT and its Academies

Included in the responsibilities of the Accounting COfficer is o duty to take approgriate action if the Trust Board, or the
Choirman, is contermplating a course of action which may be considered to infringe the requirements of propriety or
regularity (including the provisions of the Funding Agreement, the SUAT Development Plan, or other documents setting
out the finoncial duties of the Trust Board or of any other rules governing the conduct of the Body).or would not
represent prudent or economical administration, or the efficient or effective discharge of the Trust Board's functions.

The LAC is responsible for the organisation of spending in each Academy, within budgets agreed by the Trust Board,
and the recommendations appointment of stoff, though appointment panels maoy contain ¢ Trustee. Some spending
control is deveolved to mambers of the Management Team of each individual Academy, with limits above which a Senior
Leader must countersign. The Management Team of eoch Academy includes the Senior Leadership Teom, senior
Business Team stoff, Subject Leaders, and Year or Phase Leaders. These monagers are responsible for the day to doy
operation of the Academies, in particular orgonising the teaching staff, facilities and pupils.

The Chief Finonce Officer with the support of the central finance team Is responsible, clongside each individual

Academy’s finance stoff for

s The day to day oversight of financial issues

« Contributing to the strotegic planning of the Academies’ finonces linked to the SUAT Sirategic Cevelopment Plan

» The management and strategic development of SUAT's finoncial position

« The maintenance of effective systems of internal control

*»  Ensuring thot the annual accounts are properly presented and adeguately supported by the books and records of
each of the Academies

» Line management of SUAT's own business team
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting poy and remuneration of key management personnel

Decisions on pay are managed In o feir, just and transparent way. The aim of the Pay Policy, which is implemented in
all Staffordshire University Academies Trust Academies (SUAT), is 1o

+  Maximise the quality of teaching and learning in the Academies

s Support the recruitment and retention of a high guality workforce

« Enabie the Academias to recognise and reward staff appropriately fer their contribution
s Help to ensure that decisions on pay are managed in a fair, just and transparent way

The DFE “A guide to the low for School Governors” provides for certain issues to be delegated to committees (rather
than be deait with by the Trust Board), and in the case of pay the Local Academy Councils recommends pay decisions
on individual stoff to the Trust Board of Staffordshire University Academies Trust. The Principal wil make
recommendations to this committee, but the Trust Board will, If necessary, hove the final decision on ol matters relating
to pay. The Trust Board decides the % overall direction of remuneration in relation to the annual cost of living pouy rise
for all staff. The Trust Board is also responsibie for the SUAT Pey Policy, which is revised annually. Decisions on the pay
of centrally employed staff are made by the Trust's Resources Committee.

The LAC will have regard to the SUAT Pay Policy ond to the individual's particular post within the staffing structure in
their Academy. The Chief Financial Officer and Finance Team keep o central record of dll of the Academies’ staffing
and pay structures. Headteacher and Executive Headteacher pay increcsed are proposed to the Trust Board in line with
the SUAT pay policy.

All teachers employed in SUAT Acodemies are paid in accordance with the statutory provisions of the STPCD as
updoted from time to time. All support staff employed in SUAT Academies ore peid in accordance with the scheme of
cenditions of service agreed by the National Joint Council for Local Government Services (referred to s the “Green

Book™).

The Board of SUAT, through the Acodemy Principals and LACs, consults staff and unions on this policy and review it
each year, or when other changes occur to:

a) The School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document, to ensure that it reflects the lotest legal position. The poy
policy complies with the current School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document and the accempaonying statutory
guidance. It is used in conjunction with them, but, in the event of cny inadvertent contradictions, the Docurmnent and

guidance take precedence.

B) The scheme of conditions of service agreed by the Notional Joint Council for Local Government Services (referred
to as the “Green Book™ in this policy), as adopted and applied by SUAT Academies.

The Trust Board has adopted, wherever practicable, the County Council's Fromework of Suppert Staff Profiles to ensure
that the requirements of the Single Status Agreement 1997 are mel The Trust Beoaord has delegated the power to
determine the job description and person specifications within the Framework, that match the duties and responsibilities
covered by positions within the support staffing structure for on individua! Acadermy, to the LAC of thot Academy. The
pay and grading of support staff, cttached to the Framework, is the single status pey and grading structure agreed by
Stoffordshire County Council from 1 April 2008,

Page 7



Docusign Envelope |D: 47520569-5A64-44CF-8FDD-AF594FCD487F

Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continved)

In terms of the remuneration of the Chief Executive, the Trust Board recognises that the removal of o CEQ is costly in
terms of the instability it engenders in the orgenisation clong with any termination payments and costs associated with
hiring ¢ new CEQ. While this is often a result of poor recruitment, it could aiso be caused by the Trust Boord not having
established clear expectations for the CEQ from the outset or regularly evaluating the CEO's performaonce.

The Trust Boord recognises that they hove solid business reasons for undertaking an annual CEO evoluation, Apart

from helping the Trustees to meet their responsibilities, the regular evoluation of the CEQ's perfarmance brings benefits

that include:

*  Aligning the strategic direction set by the Board with the CEO's capabilities

* Promoting better board and CEQC relations to ensure an appropriate and productive coliaboration

+  Allowing the Boord to have greater objectivity about CEO remuneration

«  Sefting an exomple of accountability for the MAT as a whole - signaling that performance management is a core
culture of the Trust

* Encouraging the CEQ’s personal development

+  Providing on egrly warning system for possible problems

The Trust Board accepts its responsibility to ensure that a CEQ performance review happens, since the Board has the
ultimate responsibility for the strategy and performance of the Trust. The Board exercises this responsibility through the
CEQ, who is entrusted with SUAT's doy-to-day management, within the guidelines and direction set by the Boord. The
evaluation of CEQ performance strengthens this relationship. Therefore, SUAT's CEC evaluation process, and the
attendant remuneration decision, is built around o number of leading practice principles.

These principles are thot any CEO evaluation must:

»  Align CEO performance with the objectives of the Trust

s Be based on clear expectations developed ond agreed in advance with the CEQ

s Have o clear, transparent and agreed link between performance outcomes and remuneration

»  Encourage the CEC to set developmental goals ond plans and provide specific direction as necessary from the
ovicomes of the evaluation process

« Be conducted in o manner conducive to ongoing good governance

+ Be tailored to the specific needs of SUAT

«  Comply with relevant standards for accountabiity and communication of the results for the Trust

Adopting a more formalised, structured approach to the CEO evaluation and remuneration, gives the Board of SUAT a
greater likelihood of not only cptimising their rejationship with the CEO, but also improving the overall performance of
the Trust,

The Trust Board believes that it is important that sclaries:
¢+ Can be justified and are in the best interests of the charity

+« Reflect the individucl's responsibilities
¢ Demonstrote value for money
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Trust Board ensure that its decisions about levels of executive pay follow o robust evidence-based process ond are
reflective of the individual's rote and responsibilities. The CEQ is net involved in deciding their own remuneration. The
Board ensures that it discharges its responsibilities effectively and is confident thot its approach to pay is transparent,
propartionate and justifiable based on evidence using the following criteria:

e The academic performance in the MAT's academies

e The degree of educational challenge across the Academies

s The degree of financial challenge

s Broader factors, for example, MAT growth

e The experience of the individual

« Comparability with other Trusts of similar size, complexity and geographical spread

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year -
Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees
0% -
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total cost of facility time
Total pay bill 21,646,782
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facllity time . %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours - %
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report {continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust's engagement with employees is based on the GC100 Guidance. Trustees have a range of strategies that they
odopt in order to help them embed section 172 in their decision making.

s Strategy: there ore regulor mestings of the Academy Principals, the Members meet annualiy with the Trustees to
consider strategy, ¢il staff are invited to the annuat conference, there are staff members on the Local Academy
Councils, there ore regular meetings of the business teams, the MAT Executive meet weekly.

= Training: there are training courses on induction to the Board in the context of their wider duties and responsibilities.

» Information: there are a variety of policies and processes in place that help to disseminate information to Trustees
in order that they can carry out thelr role and satisfy the duty.

» Policies and process: SUAT has put in place policies and processes appropriate to support the company's operating
strategy and to support its goals in the light of the section 172 duty.

¢  Engogement: the Trust Beoord regularly consider what should be the company's approach to engagement with
amployses. There is a termiy meeting with the Staffordshire Trades Unions.

|- Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academuy trust

SUAT's key stokeholders are our pupils and their parents, who are ot the heart of our purnose and work in service of our
young people. We are focused con responding to the needs of, and buillding long-term relationships with, our
communities. Other key stokenolders are the producers and suppliers who we purchose goods and services from, and
the communities in which we operote. The Trust's Risk, Audit ond Resources Committee monitors this aspect of the
Trust's work.

The Company has token measures to prevent modern slavery and human trafficking in its business and supply chains,
working olongside the sponsor, Stoffordshire University. SUAT seeks to make informaotion available to financiol
stckeholders as port of information provided about and by the MAT. This includes comtact details should stakeholders
wish to discuss anything directly. Directors receive reguior financlal updates.

SUAT's Trustees take all reasonable steps to minimise any detrimental impact the Company’s operations maoy have on
the environment. The Company olso supports a range of charitable and community activity, based on stokeholder input
and coordinated through the Acodemies.

SUAT aims to conduct all its business relationships with integrity and courtesy, and scrupulously to honour every
business ogreement. The MAT Executive Team briefs Trustees on ony potential impocts and risks for stokeholders
including our suppliers, the community ond environment and how they are 10 be manoged The Directors take these
factors into account before making o final decision which tagether they believe is in the best interests of the Company
and its stakehoiders.
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staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities

The Trust's aspirations are reflected in the culture and ethos of the Academies, in the way in which cur communities
gre built upon sensitivity, telerance and the eppreciation of difference; at the heart of our work is the education of the
young people in our care. There is a whole Trust ethos based on Rights, Respect and Responsibility.

Our commitment is to raising standards. In each of our Acodemies we are committed to, year on year, improvements in
the outcomas for cur young people. Despite the impact on date of the pandemic our Academies most recent data
demonstrates that pupils’ achievermnent and progress is Improving because since the end of lockdown teaching is being
carefully personalised to meet their neads. Our Academies are meking goed use of the catch-up funding.

Wwe are committed to providing a stimulating, varied and broad educaticn, In line with any recent DfE guidance and our
schools have responded well to planning for the new EYFS curriculum. Our Acedemies offer a wide range of extro
activities as well as good acedemic standards and the vast majority of our Academies are Forest Schools. We want our
pupils to be genuinely invoived in the life of our Academies, participating In decisions, interested in their learning and
valuing the opportunities they have hod. We are proud of thelr achievements, the quaiity of our teaching and the
pastoral care we provide.

we want our young people to leave our Academies with ambition, an appetite for learning and the confidence to
encounter the challenges end changes that will inevitably face them.
Staffordshire University Academies Trust has set itself four core objectives:

. Support our academies, staff and pupils in their journey to sustgined outstanding performance
through partnership, support and collaboretion.

. Understand our communities in order to maximise our potential to raise aspirations and sutcomes
for our staff and pupiis.

. Aspire to a sustainable future for our academies so that outstending achievernent and progress can
be secured for generations of pupils.

. Train and support all stoff so that they con be inspirationat leaders ond outstanding practitioners,

within o planned framework of support for their well-being.

Our mission is to enable our children, young people and their famiiies to report that Staffordshire is a great ploce to live,
play, Jecrn and achieve i, a ploce where they fee! safe and can lead healthy lives and o place thot offers them o

successful future.

Our vision is to achieve better outcomes for alf of our children and young people by providing an cutstanding inclusive
learning experience.

At the same time, we seek 16 realise the values upon which SUAT is founded. In order to do this, we will;

. Be non-selective and operate a truiy comprehensive admissions system

. Build our partnership on mutual respect and trust

. Encourage a climote of openness and honesty

. Seek to engage effectively and inclusively with our iocal communities

. welcome ond support innovation

. Have high expectations of all young people and one another

. Recognise that effective partnership working is the responsibility of alt to sustain and nurture and is
not reliant upon individuals

. Seek to recognise the distinctive ethos ond celebrote the traditions of all of the Academies in the MAT.

Page 11
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

Q. Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the company is the operation of Stoffordshire University Academies Trust to
advance, for the public benefit, education for pupils of different abilities between the gges of 2 and 19.

The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general guidance
on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's cims ond objectives. In accordance with the Articles of Association the
company has adopted a "Scheme of Government” approved by the Secretory of State for Education. The Scheme of
Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting pupils to the Academies in the Trust, the catchment
areas from which the pupils are drawn, ond that the curriculum should comply with the substance of the national
curriculum.

The main objectives of the Trust are summarised below. The Trust seeks to ensure that oll pupils aim to moximise their
gftginment by:

s Developing o culture based on high expectations for both academic success and behaviour that supports learning
and improvements to pupil progress for all groups of pupils

e Creating a set of values and norms which every member of the Acadermies communities’ must espouse and uphold

«  Maximising the use of teaching time, for example, by cutting out the minutes that are wosted by low level disruption
and poor lesson transitions.

« Focussing on the basics porticularly literacy and numeracy

«  Preparing pupils to live in the digital age

«  Achieving high levels of consistency; our pedogogy, classroom routines and behaviour policies are opparent
throughout the Academies

+« Seeking to reward effort as welt as achievement

s+ Celebroting and developing resilience

« Systematically cultivating aspiration through the use of visits and role models

+«  Seeking to promote Fundamental British Values

« Adhering to Best Practice in relation to oll aspects of Safeguarding

b. Objectives, strategies and activities
with regards to ochievement and progress the principal objectives for the year have been to:

* Improve teaching ond learning and ossessment

Respond to the demands created by the pandemic

+ Improve levels of progress, achieverment and attendance in all groups of pupils

+  Review the curriculum in light of nationol changes to education policy

+« Close identified gops between disadvantaged and other groups of pupils

+  Secure effective senior lecdership and tocal governance

¢ Improve the extent and quality of pupl, parent and community engagement

s Support cur young pecple’s health and mental wellbeing

«  Support schools in helping pupils to mitigote the impact of the pandemic on their attainment and progress
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

It is the primary concern of each Academy within the Trust to improve the standord of education provided within o safe
and supportive environment.

with regards to organisational structures the key objectives for the year hove been:

e To continue to consolidate the integration of the Academies that joined SUAT in recent years

e To develop effective Due Diligence processes for the admission of new Academies into the Trust, strengthening the
scruting of property reloted issues and school finonce in general

s To strengthen further the link with the sponsor’s Education Department

o To further develop teams of staff across the MAT

e Toprepare for impending Ofsted inspections ot individual Academy and MAT level

s To support the development of SUAT's own business team

e To deveiop a clear structure within the MAT's centrol team of staff

e To develop the Trust as the Connected MAT, and to consider future potential appointments such as a further
operations role and a Digitat Lead for Teaching and Learning

o To start the process of linking the pupils in our Academies

« To strengthen the MAT's media profile

e To maintain and refresh as appropriate our 21 websites.

The synergy between the Academies, their wider partners and the university sponsor is leading to on incredasing range
of learning opportunities, improved practices ond economies of scale as the Trust developed during 2023/24 and

beyond.

«  Support the governance and teaching and support staff structures at All Saints Primary School, Bednall

«  The development and monitoring of Academy Development Plans aligned to the Trust's Objectives

« The support of EIPs in ali Academies to audit existing performance against Trust objectives and support the
implementation of the Academy Development Plans accordingly

e The continuation of strengthened Connected CPD provision across SUAT Academies

s Fostering of new community links and greater engagement with outside agencies

e Continued development of links with Teaching School Hubs, external CPD providers and with the sponsor

e Continued development of SUAT's central team staff

e Continued support for all Acadermies post the Covidl9 pandemic

s Consolidation of central team offices to the sponsor / university campus

The Trust's aspirations are reflected in the culture and ethos of the ccademies, in the way in which our communities are
built upon sensitivity, tolerance and the appreciation of difference; at the heart of our work is the education of the
young pecple in our care.
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Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

¢. Public benefit

The Trustees hove complied with the duty in Section 17 of the Charities Act 2011, to have due regard to public benefit
guidance published by the Charity Commission in exercising thelr powers or duties. In particular, the Trustees consider
how planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives they have set. The Trust has provided ¢ fully
comprehensive education to all pupils in s core. It fully complies with oll statutory guidonce and seeks to widen
educational objectives via o strong community role and links with its university spensor.

There have been ¢ significant number of octivities undertaken by the Academies in the Trust during the relevont
financial period to further its choritable purposes for the public benefit. We feel that we make an ocutstanding
contribution to community cohesion ond the promotion of Fundamental British Values. The Trust seeks at all times to
involve the acodemy workforces and pupil bodies in the promotion of community cohesion.

We are using the curriculum teaching and learning techniques as ¢ tool in bullding community cohesion and promoting
ond consolidating Fundamental British Values, Within the taught curriculum each Academy’s pupils learn about national,
regional, ethnic ond religious cultures, Fundamental British Values, the connections between them and between the UK
ond the wider world ond they explore the concept of community cohesion and the different forces that bring about
chgnge in communities over time. Examples of this include:

»  OCpportunities across the curriculum to promete shared values and help pupils to value difference and cheilenge
prejudice, discrimination and stereotyping

» Underpinned by strong local partnerships, multicultural elements of the curricvium are delivered through the
Performing and Expressive Arts ond by very strong links with other local schools and our giobal links, enhanced by
the sponsor

+«  Qur Citizenship work addresses the strand “identity and Diversity: Living Together in the UK”

+ We glso have a full programme of educational visits, which increase pupils’ understanding of community and
diversity, for example, geography students study the different socio-economic characteristics of residentiol oreas,
we have links with various and diverse places of worship in each locdlity. In the specialist subjects pupils study
ethnic art and music, attend dance closses and Africon drumming workshops

« We provide support for pupils for whom English is an additiona! language; we seek 10 remove barriers to effective
learning and enable pupils to be integroted so that they can achieve the highest possible standards. wWe hold
assemblies that involve the local ond wider community. We raise significont amounts of money and/or gifts for
diverse orgonisations

«  Qur comprehensive use of datg enables us to identify and tackle underperformance and we have effective policies
and procedures in place to deal with discrimination, builying and harassment; it is not tolerated

+ Wwe have worked hard to develop good partnership activities with parants and the wider community. The shared
use of our facilities in our Academies provides a means for our pupils to interact, as do the numerous opporiunities
for meaningful interculturgl activities such as sport, drama, music, festivals, volunteering activities and trips
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Staffordshire University Acodemies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities (continved)
Examples include:

e A programme of links through our extensive out of school learning programmes and work based learning

opportunities
s The Principals meet with relevant District and County Councillors and with the focal MPs
¢ The Academies work closely with the police and Community Police Officers, PCT and religicus groups in their

catchments
s Our Academies invite theatre groups to visit and they visit multi ethnic events ot Staffordshire University
e Trips to art galleries, medic events, theatres, music concerts and dance festivols
= We participate in each community’s Christmas and Arts Festivals

The Academies of the Staffordshire University Acadernies Trust teach puplls in the 2 - 19 age range. in 2023-2024 puplls
were admitted by adhering to the SUAT Admissions Policy. Puplls were admitted in the following order:

1 Children in Care and children who cecsed to be in care because they were adopted (or became subject to a
residence order or special guordianship order).

Chiidren who satisfy both of the following tests:

Test 1 the child is distinguished from the great majority of other applicants either on their own medical grounds or by
other exceptional circumstances.

Medical grounds must be supperted by o medical report (obtained by the opplicant and provided ot the point of
application). This report must clearly justify, for heaith reasons only, why it Is better for the child’s heolth to ottend the
preferred SUAT Academy rather then any other school.

Exceptional circumstances must relate to the choice of school and the individual child, l.ethe circumstances of the
child, not the economic or social circumstances of the parent/carer. They should be supported by a professionat report
(cbtoined by the epplicant and provided ot the point of application), e.g. social worker. This report must clearly justify
why it is better for the child to attend the preferred SUAT Academy rather than any other school.

Test 2: the child would suffer hardship if they were unable to ottend thot SUAT Academy.

Haordship means severe suffering of any kind, not merely difficulty or inconvenience, which is likely to be experienced as
a result of the child attending o different school, Applicants must provide detailed information about both the type and
severity of any likely herdship at the time of application.

2. Children who have an elder sibiing in attendance at that SUAT Academy (or In the case of the infant’s Academy, the
affilicted Junior Academy) and who will still be attending the Academy at the proposed admission date; (For
admission purposes, a brother or sister is a child wha lives ot the same address and either: have one or both natural
parents in common, are related by o parents marriage; ore adopted or fostered by a common parent or are
unrelated children who live af the same address, whose parents iive as partners.)
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Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities {continued}

@) Children living within the cotchment area of that SUAT Academy

b) Other children arranged in order of pricrity according 1o how neor their home addresses are to the main gate of
the SUAT Academy, determined by a straightline measurement as colculoted by the Local Authority’s Geographical
information System

Where it is not possible to accommodate all children applying for ploces within a particular category then places will be
cllocated in accordonce with the remaining criteria. If for instance, oll the cotchment crea children cannot be
cccommodatad at the Academy, children who are resident within the catchment area will be orranged in order of
priority according to the remaining criteria.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

a. Key performance indicators

GCSE Headlines

There Is slight overall improvement in the Progress 8 and Attainment & headline measures, afthough the forecasts had
predicted a greater increase.

Areas of success include increases science, both combined and separate; business; catering and product design. Areas
of focus next academic year will be mathematics, psychology and drama.

Progress Measures

Progress 8
Atrginment 8 3404 2544

(2024: 106 students, 2023: 95 students)
Bucket i

Basics (English and mathematics)

Basics 42 42 22 19 1 1
English Long 43 51 33 24 6 4
English Lit B0 59 35 38 7 5
Best English 54 63 40 40 8 &
Mathemotics 45 44 23 22 2 L

{105 students)

Bucket 2

Science

Biclogy (2 students) 43 100 25 100 2 00
Chemistry (2 students) 37 100 25 160 4 50
Physics {2 students) 35 106 27 100 2 50
Combined Science (103 studeris) 36 48 13 2€ 0 4
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Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Humanities

33

(31 students)

History 38 52 30 4
(64 students)
Geography 42 43 26 26 &

Bucket 3

GCSE/Vocational

39

TArt (8 students) 43 56

Business {31 stugents) 30 58 18 32 4 10
Catering {49 students) 59 BZ 35 43 12 27
“ealn ond Social Care G 46 35 39 22 8
(73 students)

Product Dasign (A1 63 100 37 a1 2 24
students)

Sport (25 students) 68 68 58 44 6 6
Dgychology (23 79 39 53 26 21 G
students)

heatre (16 students) 50 38 25 31 0 o
Spanish {§ stedents) 56 86 22
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Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Sixth Form
Headlines

Cohort = 50 students

Overall

2024 -1.0 13.57 £+
2024 (removol of 12 -00.88 1678 D-
students with 2 or more U
grades)
2023 -0.9 21.90 De

Academic

2024 -1.05 13.98 E+
2023 - .81 2364 D+

Applied Generat

2024
2023

Destingtions

26 students have been offered o place ct their first cholce for university or o university of thelr choosing. 62% of
students secured a place at their first-choice university. 100% of students whe wanted to go onte study at university
have achieved this. 2 students who didn't achieve the required grades, were able to secure places on Foundation
pathway courses. Students that didnt achieve 3 Level 3 qualifications have secured places at Wolves Foundation. 66% of
students that joined SUAS in Y12 achieved their 1st choice places. 3 students have been accepted on full time
apbrenticeships. 18 students have goined full time employment. Any students that are close 1o ¢ higher-grade boundary
nave been identified and remarks have been applied for.
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Trustees’ Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {continved)
Achievements and performance (continved)
Results Summary

To put this year's results into context, the infographic overifeaf gives the background information on the disruption the
Y13 students have had. in addition, we increased the number of students eligible to occess Level 3 courses in the sixth
form in 2022 to support students in achieving their career aspirations in light of these disruptions. We have focused
upon supporting the students in the community that would otherwise have been able to access the courses we offer at
other L3 providers. Overall average points per entry has seen g decrease (-8.35 difference) and the overall avercge
grade per students Is now an E+ Atfoinment has reduced for A Level subjects (-9.66 difference. Applied general
outcomes has also seen a reduction in attainment. Estimated value added hos slightly decreased by -0.1

EPQ, theatre studies and health ond social core were the three highest cchieving subject areas based upon value
added. Chemistry, biclegy ond maths ore the subject creas that we need te make significant and sustoined
improvements based upon average points per entry. It will be vitel that oll subjects analyse the cutcomes of these
exominations and refiect on how they can secure improvement. There has been a disappointing number of U grades
compared to forecast and these will need to be examined forensically to uscertain why. Analysis of these results will
also need to reflect on the viability of specific courses in terms of securing outcomes that allow students to follow thair
future career opportunities.

Y12 Results
EPC Besults Y12% {15 students) Y313% {11 students)
A8 40 (6 students) 27 (3 stydents)
A-C 80 (12 students} 72 {8 students)
A-E 10C (1S students) 30 (0 students

The data obove is a comparison of the EPQ resuits for current Y12 students agoinst Y13 students. 100% of students
achieved at least o Pass in Applied Science. it is pleasing to see the potential of the Y12 cohort with the resuits above.

Key Stage Outcomes in the Primary Sector

Attainment dato across the individua! academies is variable with g significant number of schools who continue to secure
outcomes which are above the National. There are aiso a number of schools where outcomes are not yet good
enough. There is a clear strategy for school improvement in these settings. The strategy for those schools who are
securing consistently good provision has been shored with the Trust board.  In cddition to a robust Trust CPD
programme, designed accarding 1o common areas of need, carefully cocrdinated and bespoke support is provided,
The impact of support is measured reguicrly through the school improvement model of teaching and learning reviews
and education improvement periner visits. For those schools requiring additional support, half termiy meetings with the
DLSEand CEO take place. A Trust priority for 2024-2025 is to refine the way thot achievernent data is collected and
anaiysed centrally. in particular, using progress data to identify strengths and areas requiring further improvement.

Page 20



Docusign Envelope ID: 47520569-5A64-44CF-8FD0-AF 584FCD497F

Staffordshire University Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

MEASURE SUAT 2024 SUAT 2023 NAT 2023 SUAT 2022 NAT 2022
EY % GLD 74.6% 70.5% 67.5% £1.0% 65.0%
Y1 Phonics % pass 84.8% 78.6% 81.0% 79.0% 750%
K51 % ARE Reading 11.7% 72.1% £8.2% 71.0% 67.0%
X517 % ARE Writing £2.8% 66.1% &0.2% 532.0% 58.0%
®S1 % ARE Maths £8.8% 718% 70.5% £9.0% 68.0%
K52 % ARE Reading 64.7% 82.6% 73.0% 73.0% 74.0%
KE2 % ARE Writing 75.2% 720% F1.0% £5.0% 6%.0%
K52% ARE Moths £7.5% 16.2% 750% 61.0% 0%
K527 % ARE GPS 745% 77.6% 720% 67.3% 720%
K52 % ARE RMWw 52.3% 60.6% 59.0% 52.0% 59.0%

Key Stage 2 dota for Littleton Green is not included in this data.

2022-2023 ond 2023-2024 comparison

MEASURE SUAT 2024 SUAT 2023
EY % GLD 714.6% 705%
Y1 Phonics % pass 84.8% 78.6%
K51 % ARE Reoding 71.7% 72.%
ST % ARE Writing 62.8% 66.3%
KS1 % ARE Maths £8.8% 778%
K52 % ARE Reading 64.7% 72.8%
K52 % ARE Writing 75.2% 71.7%
KS2% ARE Maths 67 5% 721%
KS2 % ARE GPS 74.5% 65.9%
K52 % ARE BMwW 52.3% £0.7%

Key Stage 2 data for Littleton Green is not included in this data compgarison.
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For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {(continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Financial Key Performance Indicators include comparison to actual v budget, salary cost to income, ability to set o
bolanced budget. Compliance with SUAT Finoncia! Regulations Manual and internal financial controls. Complionce with
SORP and FRS 102. Effectiveness of the structure and function of governance at all levels in the Trust. Accuracy of year
end management accounts and annual financial statements for the year. Reviewing cosh flow 1o look for trends and
show sustainability.

b. Going concern
After moking appropricte enguiries, the Trust Board expects that the Trust has adegquote resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the financial stotements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in
the Stotement of Accounting Policies.

¢. Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees recognise that os compaony directors they must act in a way most likely to promote the success of the
company. The Trust Board of SUAT does this by

. Being aware of any likely long term consequences to any decision being made

. Taking into account the interests of the employees

. Fostering a positive business environment which extends to relationships with suppliers and dll
stakeholders

. Recognising that there Is a moral imperative 1o understand the impact of the company’s operations
on the communities of the various Academies and to the environment

. Insisting that the company maintains o reputation for high standards of business conduct

In this way the MAT saeks to enhance the values-based culture that we are bullding across our company. Qur purpose is
not to provide o set of rules that covers every situation or challenge thot SUAT moy face, but to serve as a daily guide
for the employees who are putting our volues into action. Our people should understand what integrity, excellence,
tecmwork, and commitment mean to us and how we use these volues to make sound, ethicat decisions in the best
interests of ali stakeholders.

when we all work to understand the SUAT vision and values and guide our individual behaviour by them,

we protect one of our greatest assets—our reputation. Every decision we make, every action we take, can offect
employee morale, the way our communities perceive our company and the sustainable improvements that we achieve,
we will continue to develop and prosper only if we keep that reputation Intact.
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Trustees' Report (continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continved)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency: Streamlined Energy ond Carbon Reporting

The Trust is very aware of its moral responsibility to reduce the amount of carbon emitted by cll of our activities.

in doing so we are aiming to

. Reduce energy and resource use.

* Become more competitive and bring in new customers

» Meet stokeholder requests for infarmation on our carbon emissions

. Understand the contribution our business is making to climate change and reduce it

SUAT has used verifiable data where reasonably procticoble supplemented by meter date, inveoices or annual
statements from suppliers. The work completed by our Operdtions Manager is designed to increase awareness of
energy costs within our Academies, by providing them with data to inform adoption of energy efficiency measures and
to help them to reduce their impoct on climate change. 't also allows the Executive Team to provide greater
transparency for the Trust Board and other stakeholders,

In assessing whether the 40,000 kwh threshold has been met, SUAT has considered, as a minirmum, all
the energy from gas, electricity and transport fuel usage in the UK that we cre responsible for.

Our methodclogy is not complex as thot would be too difficult to calculote for a business of this nature;
it is, however, effective and accurate.

Gas - gas bills to determine usage

Electricity ~ electricity to determine usage

Mileage - claims forms.

In our calculations we convert kwh to kg of carbon released by cur gas and electricity usage based on Greenhouse gas
reporting conversion factors used by the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy.

Eor our vehicle use our carbon dioxide emissions are meosured by weight, in grammes (@) and colculated by how much
Co? Is emitted from the exhoust pipe per the distance driven, measured in kilometres (kmj.
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Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance {continued)

UK Greenhouse gos emissions and
energy use data for the period

1September 2023 to 31 August 2024

1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023

Enargy consurmption used to calcuiote
emissions (Kwh)

58876/ tewh

40983907 kwh

bEnergy consumption breck down
kwh) {optiona!y » gos, « electriging »
transoort fuel

Gos -~ 2,608, /00 kwi
Electricity - 1278977 kwh

Gos ~ 2./50.4432 kwh
Electricity - 1,347,948 7 kwh

Seope 1 emissions in metric tonnes
e Gos eonsumption

Gos - our used 2,608,700 kwh
of gos which emitted 47/,182.40 kgs of
CoZe

Trust

Gos - our Trust used 2750442 kwh
of gos which emitted 503,/ /8.95/ kgs of
Cal

CQ2e Purchosed eleciricily

used 1,2/8 977 kwh of  electricity which
emitted 264, /48.24 kgs of Cole

Transport - our minibuses travelied Tronsport - our minibuses trovelled
COwned tronsport - meni-huses Total (115353 miles which omitted 16,959045kgs 693/ miles which omitted 10.197.39%kgy
soope of cole coZe
Scope 2 emissions 0 melrc tonnes Electricity - our TrustiElectricity - our Trusy

used 1,547 948 / lowh of electricity which
emitted 279,075 38 kgs of Cole

Scope 5 enussions in metric lonnes
CO2e Business travel in employes-
owned vehicles

wahicles trovelled 16758 busiress miles,
omitting 4402055 kgs cole

Wehicles travelled 9263 miles. omitting
245559k coZe

rotic for the secior,

Tota! gross emissions in metric tonres |763.29 9545

028

intensity ratio Tornes CC2e per pupi! (018 01w

Cuontficotion and Reporting Methodolqu- we have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmenrial Beporting

Guidelines, wWe have aizo used the GHG Repcrting Protocol - Corporote Standorg and hove ussd the 2025 UK
Govemment's Conversion Foctors for Company Reporting.
Tha chosen intersity maasuwremert robio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes £022 per pupll the recommended
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Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continuved)

Megsures taken across the Trust to reduce energy consumption inciude

« We use and monitor building managemant systems in acadernies whose connections are capable of having BMS'
monitored remotely

s We have installed motion sensors for lighting in some academies

+  Some of our acodemies have gained revenue savings by Investing in Safix loans for energy efficiency projects as
well as reducing carbon emissions and improving the learning environment

e Additional capital funding received in the spring term 2023 has been used to invest in energy efficiency projects
such as replacing lighting with LEDs

e We are trialing monitoring systems which measure lighting, co2, humidity, temperature, to support schools 1o
proactively menitor and reduce consumption.Staff have are encouraged to not light emply rooms or areas where
daylight is sufficientEveryone is encouraged to turn off lights when leaving a room

e Acodemies are encouraged to use thelr heating systems during the winter period, between the months of late
October to earty April

s  Acodemies ore encouraged to have eco clubs, pupils who perform the rele of ‘energy monitors’

«  Staff are strengly advised that when the heating is on keep windows and doors closed!f it gets too hot, they adjust
the thermostat or individual radiator controls instead of opening windows and losing heat

+« TRVs are installed in eoch setting: Heating in all Academies is adjusted so thot it's not coming on too early or
turning off tae late Temperatures have been reduced in classrooms. We use smort meters in ccademies

e we hove Increased the use of video conferencing for staff CPD, to reduce the need for trovel between sites. Many
meetings have been conducted in Teams to reduce the necessity for travel

s We have invested in capitai projects which help to reduce energy consumption such as the instailation of new
windows, reofs and reof insulation, replaced end of life fossit fuel heating systems with air sourced heat pumps

s Our Estate Strategy ensures and emphasis on energy efficiency projects and energy reduction methods

s All of cur acedemies have a Display Energy Certificote and recommendation report completed, regardless of size.
The recommendation report provides clear and tollored guidance for gach setting, to help academies to reduce
energy consumption

« PV panels are installed in one Academy and the Trust is exploring an expansion of instaliations of sclar panels for
cll settings

s Ensuring optimal settings are provided on plant operations,

+ We have reduced gas and electricity consumption across the Trust,

e Energy mancgement is discussed at key meetings within the Trust.

e Academies have used and continue to apply for climate change levy funding to improve the energy efficiency of
their seftings.

We want our Academies to operate as efficiently os possible so thot we can focus the majority of our resources on
educating our pupils.
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Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continved)

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent
grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31
August 2024 ond the associoted expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

For the year ended 31 August 2024 total incoming resources of £33,339,985 ond total expenditure of £29,245938
resulted in ¢ surplus movement in funds of £4,094,047.

At 31 August 2024 the net book value of fixed assets totalled £51401.737. This included £49,508,547 for the [ond &
bulldings, £153,124 for computer equipment, £1,736,509 for furniture & equipment and £3.557 for the minibus.

The cash flow statement shows net funds have decreased from £6.571.928 at 31 August 2023 to £4,941.972 ot 31 August
2024

Restricted income fund at 31 August 2024 is £1151,663, pension reserve is £nil deficit and unrestricted income fund is
£3320.415,

o. Reserves policy

Purpose

The purpose of the Reserves Policy for Staffordshire University Academies Trust (SUAT) is to ensure the stability of the
Trust's organisationa! cperations, to protect it so that it has the ability to adjust guickly to financia! circumstances, such
as lorge unbudgeted expenditure, cyclical maintenance and working capital. In setting its Reserves Policy the Trustees
have regard to both the needs of today’s pupils as well as the ability of the Trust to implement future strategy.

Definitions and goals

Restricted General Reserves

Restricted reserves are represented by the main income for SUAT which is the general Annual Grant (GAG) and other
grant contributions or donations that are received for o specific project or purpose. These funds are restricted for the
use according to the funding agreements or donors’ instructions.

SUAT's regular review of the level of Restricted General Funds forms an integral part of the review of reserves. There is
no restriction on GAG carry forward. These funds can be utilised on the majority of constituent academies costs in
future years. The review will encompass the noture of the income and expenditure streams, the need o match income
with the commitments and the nature of reserves. The level of reserves will be determined by SUAT annually and can
fluctuate depending on operational needs.

The Trustees have determined that SUAT should ¢im to have ¢ minimum of £500,000 held in restricted reserves. The
reason for this is 1o provide sufficient working copital to cover deloys between spending and receipt of grants, to cid
cash flow, curriculum investment, expansion, moke provision for future uncertainties in income and expenditure and
provide o cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies, urgent maintenance and capital projects.
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All reserves are reported end reviewed regularly by the Risk, Audit and Resources Committee. Expenditure from
reserves must be approved by the Trust Board or the Chalr (to their authorised limit).

Unrestricted Funds

These are made up of SUAT's activities for genercting funds, investment income cnd other donctions which cre
expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance to achieve the objectives of SUAT.

SUAT is confident that it will mest the required pension contributions from its projected income without significantly
impacting on its planned level of charitable activity. It continues to calculate its “free’ or general unrestricted reserves
without setting aside designated reserves to cover pension liability.

These funds are reviewed regulorly by SUAT and its Risk, Audit and Resources Committee. Unrestricted funds are
obtained through one off donations and are generally built up over time from fund generating activities and
investments. Unrestricted Funds may be considered to cover a future deficit in restricted funds.

The Trustees have determined that SUAT should aim 1o have a minimum of £500,00C held in unrestricted reserves.

Designated Funds
These are unrestricted funds that have been allocated by SUAT for a particular purpose.

These funds are reviewed reguiariy and proved by SUAT and its Risk, Audit and Resources Committee; they are
obtained by designating funds from the unrestricted funds.

Use of Reserves

1. Identification of appropriate use of reserves
SUAT and relevant staff (CEQ / CFO) will identify the need for access ta reserve funds and confirm that the use is
consistent with the purpose of the reserves as described in this policy. This step reguires the analysis of the reason
for ony shortfall, the availability of ony other sources of funds and an evaluation of the time period thot the funds
will be required and replenished.

2. Authorisation of the use of reserves
Use reserves of any kind will be authorised by SUAT Trust Board or its Risk, Audit and Resources Commitiee ot the

next available meeting. Approval should be noted in the minutes. The Chair of the Board is autherised to make
decisions, in consultation with the CEO and CFO, about the use of reserves to a limit of £25,060.

3 Relationship between constituent academies
The levei of reserves bullt up from constituent Academies will ordinarily be considered to be thelr reserves. For the
ourpose of Trust Policy and consolidated financial statements reserves will be considered at an cggregated level

4. Reporting and monitoring
The Trust Board and/or the Chair are responsibie for ensuring that the funds are maintained and used oniy os
prescribed in this policy. Upon opproval of the use of these funds, the Trust will maintain a record of the use of the
funds. The Risk, Audit and Rescurces Committee will regulorly monitor the progress of reserves.

where three year financial forecasts indicote that on Acodemy will fali below the expected level of reserve, the Trust will
intervene on o tiered basis in proportion to the scale of the issue in order to regain financial management in line with

this policy.
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where Academies hold reserves substantially in excess of the target they will be expected to use these reserves in on
appropriate and timely manner 1o enhance the cutcome and experiences of pupil in the ccademy at the time.

At 31 August 2024 unrestricted general funds amounted to £3,320415 (2023 £2,934,952), restricted general funds
(excluding pension reserve) amounted to £1,151,663 (2023: £1,092,682), resulting in at total revenue fund corried forward
of £4.472,078 (2023 £4,027,634}.

No steps have been required as the Trust has maintained ot least the minimum level of reserves required throughout
the year.

b. Investment policy

The current policy is to invest in banks or building societies with a UK banking licence and regulated by the FCA and
RPA.

In essence the Staffordshire University Academies Trust (SUAT) Investment Strotegy is!

1. Regularly monitor cash flow ond current agccount balances to ensure immediate financial commitments can be met
(payroll and payment runs) and that the current account has adequate balances to meet forthcoming
commitments.

2, Toinvest a moximum of £5m (plus interest accrued) with any one institution.

3. SUAT will seek to avoid its current cccount going overdrawn.
identify funds surpius to immediate cash requirements and transfer to a fixed term deposit account or 32day notice
base linked account bearing @ higher interest rate. Funds can be invested over a range of terms from 6 weeks up
to 3 years, although investments for longer than 12 months are unlikely without specific permission of the Board,

5 Develop a loyered fund strategy across differing terms to provide a more structured deposit strategy with regular
maturities throughout the yeaor.

6. The Risk, Audit and Resources Committee will review investments held and the performonce of investments each
time they meet, or when reguested to do so.

7. SUAT's current policy is to only invest in “good™ or better credit rating or implied credit rating (also known as
investment grode). Credit ratings include:

Baa3 / P-3 or better (Moody's) or
BBB- / A-3 or better (S&P) or
BBE- / F3 or better (Fitch) or
An implied rating of BBB- or better
8.  Trecsury management will be authorised as detailed by the Scheme of Delegation,

¢. Principal risks and uncertainties
The MAT has undertaken further work during the peried to develop and embed the system of internal control, including

financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect the Trust's assets and reputation. The Trust has
a very comprehensive Finance Manual.
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Based on Its mission, the Board, SUAT's Executive Team and each Academy’s Senior Leadership Team undertoke a
termiy comprehensive review of the risks to which the Academies are exposed. They identify systems and procedures,
including specific preventable actions which should mitigote any potential impact on the Academies. The internal
controls are then implemented and the subsequent yeor's appraiscl will review their effectiveness and progress against
risk mitigation dctions. In addition to the annual review, the Board and Sponsor will also consiger any risks which may
arise as a result of ang new area of work being undertaken by the MAT. In 2020-21 and 2021 -22 this included the risks

associated with the pandemic.

The purpose of the financial regulation system for SUAT is to ensure that the Trust maintains and develops systems of
financial contral that will comply with requirements, both of propriety and of geoed financial management. Itis essential
that these systems opercte properly to meet the requirements of the funding agreement with the Department for

Education.

The Trust complies with the principles of financial control outlined in the Academies Guidance published by the
Department for Education. The Financial Regulations will provide detailed information on the Trust's cccounting

procedures.

The SUAT Board is responsible for ensuring thot adequate internal controls are in plece, Some of these conirols are
undertaken by the Trust Board itself. In proctice, these are applied through the MAT Executive team, sub-committees to
SUAT Board, Academy Principals end Local Academy Councils to ensure thet the risks of error or froudulent activity are
minimised.

To ensure this the Trust Board will consider:

o Stoff expertise

e Segregotion of duties

e Documentation

e Register of business interests

s Financial Accounting systems and records

This manual is to be read by all staff involved with financial systems

Directors / Trustees

Chief Executive Officer

Academy Principals

Academy Deputy Principals and Heads of School
Academy Assistant Principal

Finance Director

Finance Support staff

The Chairs of the Locol Academy Councils (LAC)
Operations Monager

R N N Y

The Local Academy Councll under the guidance of Trust Board will provide a framework of accountability for within
their Academuy.

Staffordshire University Acaderies Trust regularly monitors and reviews the Risk Register which includes the following
risks and acticns required to manage risk:
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STRATEGIC RISK

Rish Details of Actions Required to improve Controls
Faibure of the individost cecademiss to recruit sufficiemt | o Marketing compoians,
learrers to moke them viable and recct gocordinglyto | » Improved Ofsted rating,
the reguirerment of our stokenolders »  [mproved finks 10 providers.
v Heview Admission Policy whera reguired,
Decregse in pupil numbers in schogls presents arisk te | »  Community engogement.
budgets. s (eparimen: gwareness
Failure 1o pnsure thot the objectives of each acodemy | s Meetings with CES, DCEQ where appropriate
ara met s Development of LAC /7 LAC recruitment / support
/ troining.
{Ofsted outcomes are unfavourable
Faiture of the Trust Board to ensure thet the MAT has Meatings with CTEQ and Clerk where cppropricte,
= robust organisctiona! approcch in place to delwver Davelopment of the role of the Governonce
governance of 2ach goodemy professionol, strengihening links
Faiiure of the Trust Board to hove procedurss inploce | = Tolent / expertise matrix for ococermy ond Trust
to cover the ahsence of the MAT ond Academy senior stoff,
i=odership teams. »  New Fegple ond HE Stroteqy and Digital Strategy
in gloce
Changes in MAT leadershin.
Faiiure of the Trust Boord 1o conduct accurate Dos Lpdate the MaT offer
Diligence of applicants to join the Trust »  Updoied due diligence orocess.
Academy conversion gronts will anly be provided
where three schools join the Trust simultaneousiy
Failure to ensure thet on odequate Disaster Recovery Ongoing links with LA
Fign is in oloce, o inciude processes for dealing witha | = Continunt development of cyber security
major cyber-attock on our systems arIangements,
»  New acodemny coegorisction process,
Failure of the Trust ond ccodemies to have sufficient Nt tromirg matrix
cyber security in ploce
Failure of sponsor, or its Education Department, 1o »  Strengthen Hnks with the University
maintain ifs own reputaton »  Share morketing opporiunities
Faiiure of the Trust Bogrd to ensure thot the MAT has Reqular troiming.
arobust approoch 1o e implemeniotion of the Clear definition of rales ond responsitilities ot abt
Prevent ang Sofeguording ngendog levels vio new strotegic sofequarding pian,
*  Single sofeguording system ocross the MaT.
Faiiure of the Trust 1o have processes in pioce to deo! = Strengthen bnk with LA and TFE
with the consequences of o pandemic (or cther maior v Key staff roles checked and reviewed.
incigent) resulting in mass school closwres
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Risk

Details of Actions Required to Improve Controls

Eallure to ensure that the quality of Manogement
Information produced by each academy is of a high
guality and timely and is geed encugh to oid dedision

«  Regulor meetings of Academy staff with centrel
team

«  New attainment and progress date system,

« New compliance / risk management system.

Foliure 1o ensure thot the Directors who ore recruited
o the Trust possess the skills ond experience required
to run the MAT

«  Ongaoing training / skills review.
«  New induction packages.

Foilure 1o ensure that each ocademy's staff at oll
levels possess the skills and experience required to
manoge the gcademies

» Regular meetings with CEO. DLS! and B2,

« Review induction programme as reguired.

« Refreshed supervision plans / Pecple and HR
Strategy.

=  New training matrix

Fallure to implement a risk management strotegy

s QOptions for compliance / risk management
system.

«  New goodemy categorisation system.

+«  Ongoing complionce reviews.

Egllure 1o implement an adequeate Assyrance
mechanism

¢ New acodemy categorisation system
New complionce / risk monagement system.
New attainment ond progress data system.

Failure 1o support the wellbeing and mental health of
employees.

Recruitment crisis adversely impacts stoffing in
ocadermies and therefore outcomes for children.

e Toent motrix / succession planning.

« Further actions under HE and People and
wellbeing Strategies.

+ Ongoing work of the wellbeing hub model for
support and supervision.

COMPLIANCE RISK

Risk Details of Actions Required to improve Controls
Eailure to ensure thot the MAT complies with emplogyee | ¢ increased meetings with HR odvisers,
legisiotion «  Schedule risk analyses.

Failure te ensure that the Financial Reporting
reguirements of the MAT are met

«  Action Planning from audits progressed.
»  Planning catendar regularly updated.

Failure to ensure that the MAT ensures thot GODPR and
FOI systems, procedures and processes are adeguate

e« increcse reviews of procedures.
»  New system Implemented.
«  DP committee to review.

Failure to ensure thot the MAT is compliant in respect
of the requirements of the Government ond the Locat
Authority

« Action Planning from oudits ongoing.

Failure to manage safe, secure, warm, dry, complont
premises - buidings and grounds

«  Option for risk maragement and compliance
system.
« increase regularity of gudits and reviews

Eailure to manage complaints in accordance with the
Compigints Policy and DFE guidance.

e New process and resources for manoging
comploints,

«  Provide updated training for ccademies and LACs
on monaging complaints
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FINANCIAL RISK

Risk

Detqiis of Actions Required to improve Controls

Failure to ensure that the MAT maintans overall
financial control in relotion to its income and
expenditure

*« Regulor review of Academy budgets
o Increcse reqgulorty of meetings with acaodemies.
« Internol review monitoring.

Faiure to ensure that the financial systems of the MAT

are suitable and maintained, including managing
accurate Torecasts

»  Regulor meetings of key personnel.
s Internal review monitoring.
» increose training.

Decreases in pupii numizers and failure to recruit
sufficient learners

«  Admissions Policy In ploce ond reviewed annually
» Communication strotegies and morketing plan

« Engogement with acodemies and communities by
the Trust

Faiure to ensure that on adeguaote Disaster Recovery |« Regulor review of Disaster Recovery Pian

Plan is in place in relation to the MAT's financial

sustems
Foiure to anticipote risk of adequote funding of * fegular review of Systems by CFC and CEC.
pensions o Termlyreview by Risk, Audit and Resources
Committea.
o Aydits

Foiure to mitigate the rising costs of operating schoo! |« Review of contracts
setfings s Centrolisotion where possible
«  Sunplier spend report

Organisation

The Trust has defined the responsibilities of each person involved in the administration of Trust finances to avoid the
duplication or omission of functions and to provide o framework of accountabitity for Trustees ond staff. The financial
reporting structure is as follows:

The Trust Board

The Trust Board has overall responsibility for the administration of the Trust’s finances. The Chief Executive Officer octs
as Accounting Officer. The Board of Trustees formally delegotes the day-to-day financial management of the budget
and the responsibilities of the Accounting Officer to the Chief Executive Officer of SUAT. The CEQ is supported in this
task by the CFO, the Operations Director and the central finance teom.

The financial responsibilities of The Board include:

*  Ensuring the grant from the ESFA is used only for the purposes intended
»  Approvol of the annual budget for both the Trust and its Academies

* Appointment of SUAT's Central Stoff and the Acodemy Principals

»  Setting the terms of reference for the Board, its Committees and the LACs
s Approval for applications for business/credit cards

»  Appointment of independent Auditors

e Approvol for Bank Account

» Oversight of the Risk Register

s Strategic planning of resources
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The Risk Management Strategy cims to ensure that the Trust complies with risk management best practice and with the
requirements of both the Turnbult Guidance ond the HM Treasury guidonce contained in publication “Management of
Risk - Principles ond Concepts”. At The Trust risk management is embedded in our ongoing risk management
processes. This enables us to succeed in our aim which is to achieve on acceptable level of comfort using the ovailcbie
resource and for the Board to be abie to report sound arrongements in annual gccounts.

The current processes and responsibilities for risk menagement in Staffordshire University Academies Trust con be
summarised as:

s The Board acknowledges responsibility for the system of internal control

«  Anongolng process is in place for identifying, evaluating and managing all significant risks

e Anonnual process is in place for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal controt

s There is a system In place to deal with internal control aspects of any significant issues disclosed in the annual

report and accounts

In assessing what constitutes o sound system of internal contro! the Board gives consideration to:

s The nature ond extent of the risks facing the Trust

s The extent and categeries of risk which it regards as acceptabie

¢ The likelihcod of the risks concerned materialising

e The Trusts ability to reduce the incidence ond impact of the risks that do meteriolise

The objectives for managing risk across the Academies in The Trust are:

s To comply with risk management best practice, including the Turnbull guidelines

» To ensure risks facing the Trust cre identified and appropriotely documented

« To provide assurcnce to the Board that risks are being adequately controlied, or identify areas for improvement
» To ensure acticn is taken appropriately in relation to accepting, mitigating, avoiding and transferring risks

The Trust's Risk Management strategy ¢ims to:

+  Outline the roles and responsibilities for risk management.
» Identify risk management processes to ensure thot all risks are oppropriotely identified, contrelied and monitored
e Ensure appropriate levels of awareness throughout the academies in the Trust

The Accounting Officer has overall responsibility for risk management and has lead responsibility for risk management
processes and the Trust Risk Register. This responsibility includes:

s Monitoring the performance of risk monagement processes
e Ensuring that appropriate controls ore in place to manage identified risks
s Preparation of periodic reports to the Boord,

The Risk Register is formally reviewed each half term by the Chief Finance Officer and the Accounting Officer. A Risk
Management Plan is submitted termly to the Board.
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The approoch to risk manggement is Iinked to the MAT's strotegic aims and objectives. These hove been set ond
agreed with the Board and can be summarised, in cur confext, as:

+  High achievement and high value added

s  Qutstanding leadership and monogement

e QOutstanding infrastructure

«  Finoncial efficiency ond excellent value for money
* Inspiring and supportive culture

* Strong community and stakeholder partnerships

The structure and organisotion of the MAT's Risk Register follows the above structure to ensure that all significant
objectives and activities have been identified and the risks associated with each area have been identified.

The SUAT intervention Strategy is compiled within the compass of the 'risk cycle’ os identified within the Risk Register.

The intervention Strategqy is designed to complement our Risk Strategy which is premised arcund the framework of Risk
Management.

+ Risk governance - sets the tone and culture

s Risk assessment - to identify new and changing risk londscape

» Risk quantification and aggregation - enables prioritisation

* Monitoring and reporting - of performance

« Risk and control optimisation - framework of contrals to optimise cost / benefit

For the purposes of this Intervention Strategy the Trust will define its Operational Risk Appetite (ORA) as "the amount
ond type of risk that the MAT is prepared to seek, accept or tolerate”. The MAT has adopted a robust risk management
framework and intervention Strategy. We are seeking to put in place a holistic risk management approach across the
organisation. The challenge is how to make incremental improvements that have high volue but low impaoct.

Wwe recognise that an element of risk (innovetion) is good for the further development of the MAT but understand that
the risk needs 10 be properly controlied and reguiated. in simple terms, expressing ORA is a guestion of defining what is
aeceptable 1o the Trust and what is not. This will be achieved within both the Risk Maonagement ond Intervention
Strotegies by deciding, for each type of risk, what is acceptable, what is unacceptable, and the parameters of the areo
between those two ie what is tolerable.

in order to ensure effective monitoring and governance, the risk appetite, and ottendont intervention strategies, will
incorporote a balanced mix of both quantitative and qualitative measures.

Quantitative Measureas - income, expanditure, student numbers

Qualitative Measures - repytation, press relations, management effort

This approach will be applied across the full range of operational risk framework components (including risk ond
control self-assessment and scenaric analysis) ond will provide us with ¢ clear indication of proportional response to the
perceived materiality of the associatad risk. Specifying o timeframe for resolution wili emphasise the perceived urgency
and significonce of the underlying issue. This will promote o consistent understanding, of risk, across the MAT.
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From the perspective of SUAT as o business there are @ number of benefits to be accrued by defining ORA ond our
intervention strategies os this will

« Enable the Board to exercise appropriate oversight and corporate governance by defining the noture and level of
risks it considers acceptable (and unacceptable) and thus setting boundaries for future octivities and behaviours

s Provide a means of expressing the Senlor Leadership Tearns® oftitude to risk, which con then be communicated
throughout the academies as part of promoting a risk aware culture

« Establish a framework for decision making (which risks con be accepted/retained, which risks should be mitigoted
and by how much) which ensures an oppropriate balance between being risk seeking and risk averse

« Improve the gliocation of risk monagement resources by bringing focus to higher priority issues

e Ensure an enhanced view of risk expenditure so that the costs of risk do not exceed the benefits

« Align strategic goals and operational activities through optimising the balance between the development of the
Trust and the related risks inherent in pursuing those gocls. This will enabie the stratagy to be put into effect

e Encourage more conscious and effective risk management practices

Government funding

The Trust has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the ESFA. In 2023/24, the mgjority of the
Trust's revenue was uitimately public funded and this level of requirement is expected to contirue. There can be no
assurance that government policy or practice will remain the same or thet public funding will continue at the same
levels or on the same terms.

This risk is mitigated in o number of woys:

e Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements
¢ By ensuring the Trust is rigorous in delivering high quality education and fraining
e Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key refationships with the ESFA

Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financiai statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit on the Trust's balance sheet
in line with the requirements of FRS 102, At 31 August 2024, this share was In an asset position. The details of the year
end position and contripution rates for future years have been outlined in the Financial Review.

s The Trustees believe that resources are deployed efficiently and effectively providing good value for money.
Evidence to support this belief includes:

s Outcomes for groups and individuals generaliy show a trend of improvement; we are improving our ability to
deploy resources to achieve positive outcomes for all groups of pupils

« The good overali condition of the site and buildings

s The programme of buildings refurbishment undertaken as part of o detailed Asset Management Plan

« Theincreasing level of investment in equipment and resources

s Avery successful SRMA oudit in 2020/21 and review in 2022/23

Strengths of leadership and management in providing value far money include:

e« Adherence to DIE financial standards
s Adherence to Best Value principles in contracting
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Further evidence of effective leadership of financial activity includes:

»  Significant investment in learning resources ond in the Trust's real estate

¢+ The Academies have maintained a bolonced (or close to bolonced) budget
+  Favourable Imternal and External audit reporis

+ Documented processes of budget aliocation

Our planning for improvement qims to ensure that the human ond physical resources of the Academies re adequate
and oble to support our priorities. In procedural and structural terms strengths include:

» Significant investment in o programme of staff learning, portly through the Trust's link with the Education
Department at Stoffordshire University, membership of the National College and also in our use of the
Apprenticeship Levy. The Trust is a professicnal leorning cormmunity.

e The allocation of funding to oll departments reguires them to build this spending into their Development Plans and
provide evidence of improved outcomes,

» Allocotion of capitation follows o set formula,

s Teaching staffing expenditure, as the highest percentoge arec of the budget, is closely monitored to ensure that
provision matches fimetabled demand with no overcapacity.

*  Benchmarking exercises show that our overheads on premises and administration are well below the averoges
aliowing staffing resources to be focussed on teaching and education support staff. Remaodelling the workforce
went beyond the tasks of the workforce agreement to provide better value and focus more stoff on areas of
expertisa.

Fundraising

The Trustees have overall responsibility and accountability for SUAT's charitable status ond this includes its fundraising.
They recognise that they have a key role to play in setting the Trust's approach to raising funds, in making sure that it is
followed in practice ond that it reflects SUAT's values.

The Trustess’ oversight of its choritable fundraising is designed to protect the Trust's reputction and to encourage
public trust and confidence in the Trust This includes following the law and recognised standards, protecting the Trust
from undue risk, and showing respect for donors, supperters and the public.

The Trust Board has Trustees who possess the oppropriate skills and abilities.

The Trust Beoard delegates doy to day activities, and their management, to the Principals of the SUAT acodemies and
their Local Academy Councits. They do not delegate their ultimate responsibility. SUAT's systems and processes allow
the Trustees:

+ 1o held the Academy Principals and Local Academy Counclls to account for how they carry out their role

+« occess to the right information and advice, to the appropriate level of detail, and in the best format

+ to be assured that fundraising is compliant with the fundraising approach that SUAT has set, meeting the standards
required by the Trustee's duties, and wider low ond best practice

The Trust hes systems in ploce 1o oversee the Academies fundraising so that Trustees can be satisfied thot it is, and
remains, in SUAT’s best interests.
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Fundraising (continued)

The SUAT Finance Team ensures that there is strong management of SUAT"s assets and resources so that the Trustees
can meet their lega! trustee duty to act in the chority's best interests and protect it from undue risk. The Trusteas do not
carry out the fundraising themselves. Therefore, they hove delegated the day to doy management of fundraising to the
SUAT acodemies, Effective systems ore in place so thot:

« delegation is clearly documented, understood and implemented
+ clear reporting procedures are in place
s there are checks that the delegated authority is exercised properly

The work of the fundraising volunteers is overseen by the Academy Principels. This is so that they:

» are clear gbout what they are suppesed 1o do

+ ore oware of the rules and boundaries within which they must work
+ work safely

s know what to do if there's a problem

e know what they need to report and who they report to

The Trustees recognise that they have ¢ duty to manage and protect the Trust's reputation and other ossets from
undue risk. There are effective systems in place to identify the reputational risks that the Trust may face in its
fundraising and to plan for their management.

Plans for future periods

The Trust will support ¢l of its Academies as they strengthen further the Recovery Curriculum following the Covid-19
pandemic. The Trust will continue striving 1o improve the levels of progress and attainment of all groups of pupils in alt
tiers and will continue its efforts to ensure its pupils maximise their progress and ottainment. The Trust will also attempt
to increase its recruitment up to the PAN, accepting fransfers from other schools end Academies into ¢l years where

possible,

The Trust aims in the future to provide the oppertunity for all pupils to experience an education that is fit for purpose. To
achieve this, we draw up a community development plan, based on an identification and analysis of need. The plan's
gim is 1o establish wous to benefit the wider community (from links with mainly local secondary and primary schools)
and direct access to our facilities, curriculor materials and the expertise of oll of our employees.
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Plans for future periods (continued)

The key aims and key objectives of the Trust in the immedicte short term are:

¢ Continue to improve attendance, progress and attainment for all groups of pupils

*  Focus on growth of numbers of schools (2 ccademies have are in the process of applying to join SUAT)

s Develop further our blended leorning approach to suppart home learning as and when necessary

e Reduction of in Academy vaorigtion in pupils’ progress across ofl groups but poying particular ottention to
vuinerable groups, SEND students and those with high 12ACH scores (Income Reprivation Affecting Children index)

»  To further develop all pupils’ capacity to become independent learners

» Az port of the Behoviour for Learning System develop a more comprehensive rewards system and ensure
consistent opplication

s To further develop strotegies which encourage respect for other people and cultures ond which promote
community cohesion and Fundomenta! British Values

s Toreview and refine pupil support structures to support both academic standards and wellbeing

e Deavelop monitoring and cooching systems to enhance further the role of teachers and mentors to support learning;
strengthen further the link with Staffordshire University Education Deportment

s Tocontinue to develop pedagogy and AFL

»  To further develop and embed effective assessment across afl subjects

s Further develop the role of staff with regords to improving the progress made by pupils, defining alternative
curriculum direction, learning & teaching and behaviour, Further increase the breadth ond range of curricular and
extracurricular opportunity to better meet the neads of the total pupil body in order to focilitote participation,
progression, high achievement and improved wellbeing

s Develop community links and marketing strategies to increase the numbers on roll up to PAN

»  Ensure the careful monagement of the budget to provide value for money

«  To develop stimulating curricula in all Academies in order to better prepare pupils for the demands of the fourth
industrial revelution

These will be achieved by the rigorous Quality Assurance of the Trust's Strategic Plan and the individual Academy
Development Plans.

Across our family of schools, leadership and monagement are improving and increasingly effective. There is an
emphasis on distributed and connected leadership using a robust line managemeant system and staff are given
responsibility for identifying issues and providing selutions but are alse responsible for outcomes. The Senior Leodership
Teams, focus their work on academy improvement and strategic developments. We aiso have additional capacity
created by the MAT leadership arrangement and the work of the Director of Learning and School improvement and the
team of Education Improvement Pariners. The MAT lecdership structure has benefited the Academies in o number of
significant ways:

* Increosed status and influence for the Academies, working in portnership ot local, regional and national level

*  Astrengthened role for the members of the LACs in the strategic planning within the Academies

=+ A strengthened role, and career progression, for key non-teaching stoff in the leadership and management of the
Academies in the Trust

* A powerful fearning opportunity for some staff

« Careser progression and important professional development with the evoluticn of a new structure throughout the
MAT for both teaching aond support staff

s |t promotes o brooder perspective within our leadership teams giving them the chance to work gcross twelve
Academies, more as the Trust grows
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Pians for future periods (continved)

« It has strengthened strategic and operational roles for staff ot alt levels

+ It has increcsed contact through the tiers ond has strengthened collaboration

+  Strengthens internal system of selfreview driving up standards still further

s Alows us to work with, manage and search out change

« Aliows the MAT to distribute leadership end power, and improve teamwork and morale as a way of sharing vision

and values
s Aliows the CEO to e a ‘resource investigater', investigating new initiatives ond making use of the resultant funding;

resources are g key driver in school improvement.
o Creates additional capocity for lesson observation and self review through the use of the EIPs

+ Focus on vision and stretegy so that we get strategy and policy right

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

Steffordshire University Academy were holding funds of £nil which related to monies collected for charities but not yet

paid over.
Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are awore:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unoware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to moke themselves aware of eny relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report, Incorporating a strategic report, was opproved by order of the Board of Trustees, os the
company directors, on é December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Signed by:
| Mary Ralker
YABEF1DBH48A441 .

Mary Waolker
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring thot Staffordshire University Academies Trust
has an effective and approprigte system of control, financial ond otherwise. However, such a system is designed 1o
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, ond con provide only reasoncble and
not absolute ossurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we hove reviewed and token account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governaonce.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the doy-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Staffordshire
University Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Educction. They are oiso responsible for reporting to the
Board of Trustees any maoterial weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees Responsibilities. The full Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year. The board maintains
effective oversight in fewer than 6 meeting annudlly through the use of the subcommitiee structure.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

James Copper, Chief Executive Officer ond 4 4
Accounting Officer

Chris Spencer

Mary Walker, Chair of Trustees
Martin Jones

Jeremy Mellor

Jim Pugh

Gaye Blake-Roberts

Judith wWyman

Lynsay Jennings

AT R . N A o B S I Y
RS A - N . Y

The governors reviewed their performance at a meeting in July 2021,

Additionolly, SUAT has three committees which are sub-committees of the Trust Board.
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Governance (continued)

Antendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Risk, Audit and Resources Committee

Trustee Meetings attended Out of o possible
James Capper 3 3
Judy Wyman 2 3
Martin Jones 1 3
Chris Spencer 3 3
Gaye Bloke-Roberts 3 3
Jeremy Mellor 0 3

Education Committee

Attendance during the year ot meetings was as follows;

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Jomes Capper 3 3
Jim Pugh 2 3
Martin Jones 2 3
Judy wWyman 2 3
Lynsey Jennings 3 3

Review of value for money

As aecounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer hes responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good vaolue in the
use of public resources, The Accounting Officer understonds that Value for Money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpoyer resources receivad.

During the year the CEO / Accounting Officer has defivered improved Value for Money by ensuring that the Trust
delivers:

Improving educationd results for all groups of pupils. SUAT has supported school improvement for our pupils in
order to raise their attainment and aspirations. SUAT Is committed to supperting our pupils achieving their full
potential through acodermic achievement, extracurricular opportunities and extended learning to develop the whole
person to help prepare them for higher education, further truining or work. There has clearly been on impact
caused by the pandemic.

A robust tracking system for monitoring achievement

Continual examination of how looking at how data can inform staff in order for them to support and extend the
learning of the students

A sustem where all our teams are focusing on the pupils’ iearning needs and encourage innovation and creativity to
meet those needs

A differentiated curriculum in order to make the most appropriate use of resources to meet pupils’ needs

A comprehensive pupll support service and specialist learning provision. Pupils benefit from one to one mentoring,
small group work, external educational provision, where appropriate, and cur experienced teams work with pupils
to support their individual needs

Rewards for excellence and encouragement for positive behaviour through our rewords schemes, We celebrate
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Review of value for money (continued)

achieverment and encourage pupils to try new activities to develop thelr confidence and leadership skills

+ Ensuring that where possible additional needs of individual pupils cre met and appropriate rescurces (stoff and
equipment) are made available such os one to one support or stretch and challenge for the HPA pupils

e« By recognising the fact that Pupil Premium and vulnerable pupils are not o homogeneous group and cover a wide
range of needs. As such the sirategies we use 1o raise attainment take these groups and individual needs fully into
account

e We use high quclity teaching and learning as the preferred woy to narrow the gaps in oftginment in the first
instance. We also use high quality interventions with proven evidence of impact to assist our pupils who need
additional support in @ time imited way

e We use the Pupil Premium for cll year groups, not just those taking examinations at the end of the year

e Our key principles are that achievement for all pupils, including those from disodvantaged backgrounds, is best
fostered in schools with an ethos of high expectations, where high quality teaching and learning is at the heart of all
we do. To this end our curricula are designed and regularly reviewed 1o ensure thot they meet the needs of all
groups of pupils so that teaching ond learning in the classroom is the main focus for raising achievement for all
pupils

» Allocoting well troined stoff to teach intervention groups 1o improve numeracy and literacy

s Using attcinment and progress data freguently to check whether interventions or techniques are working and
making adjustments accordingly, rather than just using the data retrospectively to see if something has worked

«  Making sure that our suppaort staff, particularly Teaching Assistants, are highly trained and understand their role in
helping pupils to achieve systematically focusing on giving pupils dear, useful feedback about their work, and ways
that they can improve

» We ensure that class and subject teachers know which puplls are eligible for the Pugil Premium so that they con
take responsibility for accelerating their progress

» Wwe hove a clear policy on spending the Pupil Premium, agreed by governors and publicised on each Academy’s
website, to provide well targeted support to improve ottendance, behaviour or links with families where these are
barriers to & pupll’s learning

= ‘Wwe have odopted a clear and robust performance management system for all staff, which included discussions
about pupils eligible for the Pupil Premium in performance management meetings

e Qur senior staff, Education Improvement Partners, Local Academy Council Members and governors are thoroughly
involved in the decision making and evaluation process

e« We are able, through coreful monitoring and evaluation, to demenstrate the Impact of each ospect of our spending
on the outcomes for our pupils, across the SUAT

e The Partnership arrangement with the Education Department ot Staffordshire University provides Value for Money
by enhancing the quality of ocutcomes for the pupils within cur academies by working together to improve teaching
ond legrning and providing better quality training opportunities for all staff

In addition, we are seeking to effect Vatue for Money by:

» Achieving economies of scale in purchosing policy, for example, !CT procurement, ICT technical support,
adrministrative supplies, maintenance work, cleaning and catering, grounds maintenance .

e Achieving savings in planning and adrministrative time, and developing the potential for MAT administrative staff
who can work with each Acadermy, Our Finance Officers eqch have o case load of Academies.

* Enhancing strategic planning across all phasas and Academies

+  Joining together to access extended services, for example, support through consultants for staff and pupit well
being

+  Providing ICT back up through a service level agreement between providers and SUAT

»  Providing support for web sites in the Academies by negotiating o favourable SLA with o provide
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Review of value for money {continved)

SUAT has o dedicated Risk, Audit and Resources Committees, who are responsible for determining SUAT's finoncial
priorities finking this to the long ferm vision, the Trust's Strategic Development and Business Plans and directions given
by the Board. Advised by the Accounting Officer the Board have a strong oversight of the financial management of
SUAT; and robust Internal systems and controls are in place.

The Board are commitied to their roles and understand their responsibilities; the terms of reference for all committees
are reviewed and approved annuaily.

The budgets for each Acaderny are cpproved onnually by the Trust Board. All relevant staff involved in the preparation
of the budget, and all financial reports, are mindful of the need to belance the budget against income to ensure the
Academies and SUAT remain ‘going concerns’, The committees meet termly 1o review our financial position, to receive
reports from the CFO and the Accounting Officer, and to challenge decisions, The Finance controls are reviewed
annually. SUAT's system of internal financial contrel is based on o framework of reguler management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and o system of delegation and accountability.

SUAT ccademies takes o prudent approach to expenditure. As approximately 80% of budgets are spent on staffing,
each Academy’s stoffing structure is reviewed to ensure that it is fit for purpose and can adapt and respond to support
the successful attainment of the objectives within the acadermy’s development plan.

Contracts and services are regularly oppraised and renegotioted when appropriote to ensure value for money. The
Academies obtain three quotes for all purchases over £5,000 unless there are exceptional circumstonces e.g. there only
¢ scle supplier available, the purchase is urgent e.g. to address a falling critical system, The tendering process and/or
frameworks are used for all purchases over £40,000. Budget hoiders actively lcok for best value and this is overseen
by the Operations Director and CFO. The SUAT teams always assess the cost end benefits of various options before
making a decision to ensure the right option for the lenger term. SUAT uses complicnt framewcrks where cppropriate,
inciuding tender processes to uchleve best value for higher value procurement. On smalier valve procurement, our
Budget Helders ere continuously looking for the most competitive deals using various procurement tools such as
internet shopping, advice from other schools and economies of scafe. We have o member of the MAT team, the
Operaticns Director, who specifically deals with procurement and is constantiy checking for best value.

SUAT has a cycle of review for its ongoing services from external crganisations to ensure those services continue 1o
meet the needs of the Academies, ore the best available to us ot that time, ond offer good value for money. Tender
exarcises are regularly undertoken to ensure that high value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a
regular basis to ensure that jong term contracts (3 to 5 years) remain competitve.

A proactive approach is taken towards preparing funding bids and generating revenue streams in order 1o maoximise
income generation. The academies explore every opportunity to generate income through hire of the academy
faciiities.

A monthly cash flow forecast ensures that all surplus cash balances are invested in interest bearing accounts to
rmaximise interest earning potential,

SUAT has @ comprehensive Risk Register in place, which is reviewed annually by the Members, Senior Leadership Team
and termiy by the Risk, Audit and Resources Committee. Risk Reporis are presently termly to the Board. The SUAT
Academies have Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Management procedures in place and clso have
procedures covering the recovery of the financial accounting system. SUAT tests these procedures at regular intervals
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and records areas where the procedures are not sufficiently robust,

Monthly budget monitoring reports ore produced by the finance team. These reports are reviewed by the CFO,
business team ond the Principal / Local Academy Council of each Acoderny. Remedial action is token to oddress any
significant variances that may have an impact on the budget outturn.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasenable level rather than to elimingte ol risk of foilure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reosonable and not obsolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify ond prioritise the
risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

Capacity to handle risk

The Trust Board hos reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and complionce controls that have been implemented to mitigote those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the
view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluoting and manoging the Academy Trust’s significant
risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
fingncial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk ond control framework
The acaderny trust's system of internal financial control is based on ¢ framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegotion and accountobility. In
particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting ond monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
cre reviewed ond agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Risk, Audit and Resources Committee of reparts which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Consillium as internal quditor.

Their rofe included giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on SUAT's financial systems.
On o termly basis they report to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge
of the Board of Trustees finoncial responsibilities, The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financicl matters
and performing o range of checks on the academy trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the
current peried included:

+ Financial Manogemaent
s income
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The risk and control framework {continued}

+ Purchases

s Debit Cards
« Inventory

+  Poyrell

+ HR

« Governance

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in guestion the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditors;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the CFO and the Operations Manager;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have respensibiiity for the development and
maintenance of the internal control fromework.

. the work of the external auditors;

The cccounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal controd
by the commitiee and a plan to cddress weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the cudit end risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
thot the academy trust has an adequate and effective fremework for governance, risk mancgement and control.

approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 6 December 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

Signed by: Signed by:
@4;/11 Walker 6 tagper
S4215CEEERBA3E

SABEF1DBR4BAS4 ...
Mary Waiker James Capper
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As occounting officer of Staffordshire University Acodemies Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust Boaord of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-comglionce with terms and conditions of oll funding, including for estotes safety and
management, undar the funding agreement betweaen the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consideration | have had due regard to the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
responsibilities for estates sofety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or impreper use of
all funds by the academy trust, or material nan-complionce with the terms ond conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement ond the Academy Trust Hondbook 2023

i confirm thaot no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and
ESFA,

Signed by:
i 3 capper
94215CEEES1B43E. |
James Capper

Accounting Officer
Date: 6 December 2024
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The Trustees (who are dlse the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company iow) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under compoany low, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give o true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, inciuding its
income ond expenditure, for that period. in prepering these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select suitoble accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academnies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards hove been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it s inappropriate io presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsile for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and exploin the
charitoble company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are giso responsibie for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporote and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdem governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behaif by:

Signed by:
l Mary Walkry
HABEFIDBR48A441..

Mary Walker
Chair of Trustees
Date: 6 December 2024
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Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Staffordshire University
Academies Trust

Opinicn

we have audited the financig! statements of Staffordshire University Academies Trust (the 'academy trust’ for the year
ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a summoary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdem
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standord 102 "The Finoncial Reporting Standard
opplicable in the UK ond Republic of Ireland, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as ot 31 August 2024 ond of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended,;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Genercily Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP 2019

and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skiils Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) ond applicable iow.
Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financicl statements section of cur report. We ore independent of the academy trust In occordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, ond we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial staternents, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the ccademy trust's ability to continue as g
going concern for a pericd of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Cther information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annugl Report.
Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explickly stated in our repont, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financlal statements or our knowiedge obtoined in the course of the qudit, or otherwise cppears 1o be materialiy
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to o material misstatement in the financlal statements themselves. if, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is o material misstatement cf this other information, we are required to report thot
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees’ Report including the Strategic Report for the fingncial year for which the
financial staternents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requiraments.
Matters on which we are required 1o report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the acodemy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identifiedt material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report including the Strotegic Report.

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have neot been received
from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial staternents are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not mode; or

. we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Stotement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy trust for the purposes of company low) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determineg is
necessory to enable the preparction of finuncial statemenits that ore free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trusteas either Intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
aiternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
maiericl misstaternent, whether due to froud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ Report thot includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not o guarantee thot an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will ciways detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraoud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influance the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these finoncial statements.

Irregularities, including froud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, inciuding fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detciled below:

Qur approach to identifying ond assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with faws and regulations, was as foilows:

« the senior statutory ouditor ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, copabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
reguictions;

« weidentified the lows and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with directors and other
management, and from cur commercial knowledge and experience of the academy sector;

s we focused on specific lkaws and regulations which we considered may hove a direct moterial effect on the financial
statements or the operations of the academy trust, including the financial reporting legisiation, Componies Act
2006, taxation legisiation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and health and sofety legisiation;

* we gssessed the extent of compliance with the Jows and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

+ identified laws and reguiations were communicated within the audit teom regularly and the teom
remained clert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit,

Wwe assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining
an understanding of how froud might occur, by:

»  maoking enguiries of management as 1o where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected ond olleged fraud; and

« considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

o performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

« tested journal eniries 1o identify unusual transoctions;

o assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in note 2
were indicative of potential bias; and

s investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of iregularities and non-complionce with lows and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

« agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentatior,

e recding the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

e enguiring of management os 1o actual and potential litigation ond claims; and

e reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant reguiators and the academny trust’s legal advisors.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation, This risk increases the
mare that compliance with ¢ low or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less fikely to become aware of Instances of non-compliance, The risk is also greater regarding
irrequtarities occurring due to froud rather than error, os fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,

omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is lecated on the Financial Reporting
Counci's website at: www.frooro.usk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors’ Report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the acodemy trust's members, as o body, in accordence with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Cur oudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the ocademy trust’s members
those matters we are required o state to them in an Auditors’ Heport ond for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and its members,
os ¢ body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

YA
Jonathan Dudley (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Dains Avudit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Lane

Etruria

Stoke on Trent
ST15RQ

& December 2024

Page 52



Docusign Envelope 1D: 47520569-5A64-44CF-8FD0-AF594FCD487F

Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Staffordshire University Acodemies
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in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22 September 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Acadernies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Staffordshire University Academies Trust during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions cenform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Staffordshire University Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken s¢ that we might state to Staffordshire University Academies Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to stote in o report and for no other purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not occept or assume respensibility to angone other then Stoffordshire University Academies Trust and
ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Staffordshire University Academies Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of Staffordshire University Academies Trust's funding
ogreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 June 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are 1o obtain limited assurance ond report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in ccrrgihg
out our work which suggests that in oll material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the yeor 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parlioment or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the guthorities which govern them.

Appreoach

we conducted our engogement in accordance with the Fromework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. we performed a limited assurance engogement as defined in cur
engagement letter.

The objective of o fimited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a neqative conclusion on regulority.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagerment and consaquently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in o reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.
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Conclusion

in the course of our work, nothing hes come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed ond income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied 1o purposes
Intended by Parlioment and the finoncial tronsactions do net conform to the authorities which govern them.

Bains Audit Limited

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Villoge
Forge Lane

Etruria

Stoke on Trent

ST1 8RO

Date: 6 December 2024
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Note £ £ L £ £
Income from:
Donations and copital
grants: 3
Transfer from local
authority on
conversion - (85,135) 3,760,270 3,675,135 -
Other donations and
capital grants 62,002 - 920,363 982,365 1,197,235
Other trading activities 5 1,319,323 - - 1,319,323 1,236,781
Invesiments & 118,040 55,000 - 173,040 25073
Charitable activities 4 261,046 26,929,076 - 27,190,122 24 647557
Total income 1,760,411 26,898,941 4,680,633 33,359,985 27.106,646
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 513,418 - - 513,418 531,345
Charitable activities 8 364,728 26,714,566 1,653,226 28,752,520 27,028,063
Total expenditure 878,146 26,714 566 1,653,226 29,245,938 27.,558.408
Net income/
(expenditure) 882,265 184,375 3,027,407 4,094,047 (452,762)
Transfers between funds 19 (496,802) 174,606 322,196 B -
Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/(losses) carried
forward 385,463 358,981 3,349,603 4,094,047 (452,762}
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed assets Total Tatal
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ i £ £ £
Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/(losses) brought
forward 385,463 358,981 3,349,603 4,094,047 (452,762
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuerial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 28 - 1,290,000 - 1,290,000 2995000
Pensfon surplus not
recognised 28 - {1,590,000) - (1,590,000) {923,000)
Net movement in funds 385,463 58,981 3,349,603 3,794,047 1,619,238
Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought
forward 2,934,952 1,082,682 49177, 724 53,205,355 51,586,117
Net movement in funds 385,463 58,981 3,349,603 3,794,047 1,619,238
Total funds carried
forward 3,320,415 1,151,663 52,527,324 56,999,402 53,205,355

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the yecr.

The notes on pages 60 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2024

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Investments

Cash at bonk and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one yeor

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts folliing due after more than
one year

Net assets excluding pension asset

Defined benefit pension scheme asset

Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Pension Reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

4

15
16

18

28

19
19

19
19

1,211,883
1,948,804
4,941,972

8,102,659

(2,500,391)

52,527,324
1,151,663

———————————

2024

51,401,737

51,401,737

5,602,268

57,004,005

(4,603}

56,999,402

56,999,402

53,678,987
3,320,415

56,999,402

1.018,809
866,304
6,571,928

8,457,041

(3,18343Q)

49177721
1,092,682

2023

47,939,226

et rerT——

47,939,226

5,273,611

53,212,837

(7482)

53,205,355

53,205,355

50,270,403
2,934,952

PR

53,205,355
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Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2024

The financicl statements on poges 55 to 97 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 06 December
2024 and are signed on their behalf, by;

Signed by:
i Mary Walker
DABEF TDBRABA44Y..

Mary Walker
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 60 to 97 form part of these financial statements.

Page 58



Docusign Envelope 1D: 47520669-5A64-44CF-8FDO-AF594FCD4G7F

Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Compuny Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash {used in)/provided by operating activities 21 (184,243) 867,453
Cash flows from investing activities 23 (1,442,834) 657,800
Cash flows from financing octivities 22 (2,879 (2.879)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the uear (1,629,956) 1,522,374
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,571,928 5,049,554
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year 24,25 4,941,972 6,571,928

AP ————————
e —r—

The notes on pages 60 to 97 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal cccounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set cut below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financicl statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK ond Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in acccordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard cpplicable in the UK ond Republic of irelond (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Staffordshire University Academies Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that maoy cast significant doubt on the ability of the academy
trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees maoke this assessment in respect of o period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the finoncial stotements and have concluded that the
scademy trust hos adequate resources to continug in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as ¢ geing concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a recelvable basis. The balonce of income
received for specific purpases but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of mesting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income ond its recognition is deferred and inciuded in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-reloted conditions are met Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full In the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receiveble and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Copital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants ore reflected in the Bolance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund, Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the osset on which
they are expended
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

14

income {continued}

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the acodemy trust which amounts 1o a donation is recognised in the
Staterment of Financial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where receipt Is probable and it con be measured refiably.

Donations
Donctions are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Cther income
Other income, inciuding the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it Is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services,

Transfer on conversion

where assets ond liakilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to on academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Bolance Sheet at the point when the
risks and rewords of ownership poss to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as a
transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Capitol Grants’ to the net assets received.

Donated fixed assets (exciuding transfers on conversion or into the academy trust)

where the donated good is a fixed osset it is measured at fair value, unless it Is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as 'Income
from Donations and Capitol Grants' and a corresponding amount is included In the oppropriate fixed gsset
category ang depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting
policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that o transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the abligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, Including support costs involved in undertaking
each octivity. Direct costs attributable to o single activity are allocated directly to thot activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity
are apportioned between those activities on ¢ basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs
are aliocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges ollocated on the portion of the osset’s

use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes ali expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
inctudes costs of ali fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading,
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1. Accounting policies {(continued)

1.4 Expenditure (continued)

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the ccademy trust apportioned to choritoble activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

1.5 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £3,000 or more gre copitalised as tangible fixed assets and cre carried ot cost, net of
depreciation and any pravision for impairment.
where tangible fixed gssets have been gequired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balonce Sheet ot cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions ottached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the reloted grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible
fixed gssets have been ccouired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.
Depreciation is provided on cll tangible fixed assets cther thon freehoid land and assets under construction,
at rotes calculoted to write off the cost of each asset on a stroight-line basis over its expected useful life, as
follows:
Depreciation s provided on the foliowing bases:

Freehold building - 2% straight fine

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line

Long-term leasehold land - 0.8% straight line

Furniture and equipmant - 15% & 25% straight line

Computer eguipment - 233% straight line

Maotor vehicles - 25% straight line
Freehold land is not depreciatad.
A review for impoirment of a fixed asset 1s carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate thot
the carrying value of any fixed osset maoy not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrging vaiue of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. iImpairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financiol Activities.

1.6 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised ot the settlement amount ofter any trade discount offered.
Prepoyments are volued ot the amount grepaid net of any trode discounts due.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

110

Cash at bonk and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly fiquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation ot the Balonce Sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that o tronsfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amcount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liobilities are recognised at the amount thot the academy trust
anticipates it wiil pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received os advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide.

Financial instruments

The acaderny trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The fingncial assets and
fingncial fiabilities of the academy trust and their measurement boses are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are bosic financial instruments and are debt Instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed In note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash ot bank is classifled as a basic financial instrument and is measured at foce value,

Financial habilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
medsured at amortised cost as detalled in notes 17 and 18. Taxotion ond social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cosh settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rother than cash
or ancther financial instrument.

Taxation

The acodemy trust is considered to poss the tests set out in Parcgraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of o charitable company for UK corpordtion tox purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

in

Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS"}y and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions cre calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable poyroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quodrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Conseguently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is ¢ funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held seporately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair volue
and liabilities are measured on an actuaric! basis using the projected unit credit methed and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high qudlity corporate bond of eguivalent term and
currency to the labilities. The octyarial volugtions ore obtained at least trienniclly and are updoted ot each
Balonce Sheet date. The amounts charged to opercting surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are Included os part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement
of Finencial Activities and camprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculoted by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and
fosses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

112

113

1.14

Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained scheol to an academy trust involved the tronsfer of identifiable
assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on thot basis as set out below.

The assets and fiabiiities transferred on conversion from Westlands Primary School 1o the academy trust
have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The
amounts have been recognised under the oppropriate Balance Sheet categories, with a corresponding
amount recognised in Income from Donations and Capital Grants in the Staternent of Financial Activities
ond analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Freehold land and bulldings

On the transfer dote of 1 Aprif 2024, the freehold rights to the land and buildings have been transferred
frem The Newcastle Co-Operative Trust. The value is based upton the valuation provided by FHP Property
Consultants under the depraciated replacemnet costs for speciolised assets set out in Financial Reporting
Standard 102 (section 17). The land and buildings has been credited as o donation in the Restricted Fixed
Asset Fund column of the Statement of Finoncial Activities and included within tangible fixed assets on the

bolance sheet.

Local Governmeant Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit

The obligation reloting to the employees in the LGPS scheme that were transferred as part of the
conversion from the maintained schools were transferred to Staffordshire University Academies Trust on
April 2024, The deficit on the Locol Government Pension Scheme has been debited as o donation in the
Restricted General Funds column of the Statement of Financial Activities and included within the LGPS
liability on the bolance sheet.

Cash
Cosh balances at 1 April 2024 in respect of the maintained school and school funds were transferred to

Staffordshire University Academies Trust, These cash balonces have been credited as @ dongction in the
Statement of Financial Activities under the Unrestricted Fund column and included within the cash and bank
balances on the balonce sheet.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 26.

Agency arrangements

The acaderny trust acts as on agent in distributing 1619 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from
ESEA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as
the academy trust does not have control over the charitoble application of the fundsThe funds received
and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 32,

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line
bosis over the lease term.
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1. Accounting policies {(continued)

115 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting cny of the
charitable objects of the acodemy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed gsset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
the funders where the asset acguired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise ali other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund,

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and ore based on historical experience ond other foctors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Criticol accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the reloted actual results. The estimates and assurmptions that
have o significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes In these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the lotest full actuarial valuction performed at 31 March 2022 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability ot 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward aporoach and o full actuarial valuction would impact on the carrying amount of
the pension liability.

An entity shall recognise a plon surplus as a defined benefit plan asset only to the extent that it is able to recover
the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. The trust are
expected to participate in the LGPS indefinitely and therefore do not believe there is any entitlement to o refund.
The trust has also instructed the pension octuary to calculate an asset ceiling report to calcuiote the estimated
economic benefit available as a reduction in future contributions, which shows a £NH volue. Management have
therefore derecognised the total pension surplus of £2,513,000, which has resulted in the movement in surplus of
£1,590,000 to be derecognised in the year,
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2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

Leasehoid lond and buildings
Under 125 year lease:

The {ong term leasehold land and buildings within the accounts relates to the academy premises which were
dongted to the acadermy on conversion on o 125 year lease from Staffordshire County Council. The leasehold
iond and bulldings were valued using FHP Property Consultants valuction. These are being depreciated in
accordance with the depreciation policies set out in note 1. No annual charge s made for the use of the land and
buildings under the terms of the lease, based cn management not being able 1o reliably measure the open

market rote.

2 year licence:

The academy trust company occupies:

(a) lend provided to it by the Locat Authority under o 125-year lease (as detailed above),
(o) land provided to it by site trustees under a mere licence (aiso referred to as a Church
Supplemental Agreement) which contoins o two year notice period.

In respect of;

(o a figure is entered that reflects advice taken on the vaiue of the lease;

{b} Having considered the fact that the academy trust company occupies the land and such buildings as may be
or may come to be erected on it by o mere licence that transfers to the academy no rights or control over the
site save that of occupying it at the will of the site trustees under the terms of the relevant site trust, the directors
have concluded that the value of the land and buildings occupied by the acaderny trust company will not be
recognised on the balance sheet of the company.

3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Donations
Transfer frem local authority on
conversion (note 26) - (85,13%) 3,760,270 %,675,135 -
Donations 62,002 - - 62,002 51,246
Capital Grants - - 920,363 920,363 1,145,989
62,002 (85,135} 4,680,633 4,657,500 1197.235
Total 2023 51,246 - 1,145,989 1197,235
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4. Funding for Academy’s educational operations
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant - 20,301,026 20,301,026 18,909,816
Cther DFE/ESFA Grants
Start up Grant - 25,000 25,000 -
Mainstream School Additional Grant - 656,333 656,333 493173
Teachers Pension Grants - 197,907 197,907 49,234
PE Grant - 337,91 337,91 331220
Pupil Premium - 1,259,211 1,259,211 1217,227
Cther DfE/ESFA Grants - 559,841 559,841 606,238

- - 23,337,229 21,606,908
Other Government gronts

LAC income - 53,945 53,945 35160
SEN Funding - Q83,5M 983,51 830,796
QOther Government Gronts - 283 444 283,444 100,732
Early Years Funding - 147471 1,474,711 1,038,968

- 2,795,611 2,795,611 2,005,656

Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations 261,046 796,236 1,057,282 1.034,993

261,046 26,929,076 27,190,122 24,647 557

Total 2023 303,135 24,344 422 24,647 557
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5. income from other trading activities

Nursery and school clubs income
Hire of focilities

Other income

Alternative provision income

Staff insurance

Total 2023

6. Investment income

investment income

Pension income

Total 2023

Unrestricted Tota! Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
811,030 811,030 752,777
69,332 99,332 98,962
223036 223,036 182,940
141,600 141,900 174,650
44025 44 025 27452
1,319,323 1,319,323 1,236,781
1,236,781 1,236,781
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
118,040 - 118,040 25,073
- 55,000 55,000 -
118,040 55,000 173,040 25,073
25073 - 25073
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Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
expenditure on fundraising
trading activities:
{Direct costs 372131 - 141,287 513,418 531,345
Educational Operotions
Direct costs 18,109,129 - 2,801,404 20,910,533 19,195,593
Support costs 3165522 850,943 3,805,522 7,821,987 7.832470
21,646,782 850,943 6,748,213 29,245,938 27,559,408
Tota! 2023 20,0482 797175 6,714.121 27559408
Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directiy costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Educaticnal operations 20910533 7,821,987 28,732,520 27,028,063
Total 2023 19,195,593 7832470 27,028,063

Page 70



Docusign Envelope [D: 47520569-5A64-44CF-8FDO-AF534FCD497F

Staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

8, Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies/Catering
Examination fees

Staff development and other staff costs
Technology costs

Consultancy

Other costs

Recruitment and other staff expenses

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £
18,109,129 16,436,196
1,192,733 1,199,471
730,884 741,568
82,349 82,124
126,277 105,406
6,816 16 1M
157,013 142175
445,458 440,208
59,874 32,334
19,195,593

20,910,533

———————
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities {(continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pensicn finance costs

Staff costs

Pepreciation

Educational supplies/Catering
Technology costs
Consultancy

Other costs

Staff related insurance
Maintenance of premises and special facilities
Cleaning ond caretaking
Rates

Security

Energy

Lega!l and professional
Transport

Cther premises costs

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £

. 86,000
3,165,522 3,260,289
460,493 390,684
882,580 787.600
292,044 308,256
228,640 232,038
508,297 513,328
56,402 56,569
508,221 505,978
497 441 441,065
106,617 93,731
7.569 12,737
781,440 820,524
55,255 44,628
70,331 81577
201,135 197,466
7,821,987 7832470
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9. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tongible fixed assets

Fees paid to cuditors for:

- audit

- gther services

10.  staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

wages and salaries
Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency costs

Staff restruciuring costs comprise:

Severance pagments

2024 2023
£ £
42,860 19,386
1,653,226 1,590,155
38,500 35,000
11,475 12,563
2024 2023
£ £
16,104,178 14,816,481
1,564,502 1407436
3,562,860 3,470,292
21,231,540 19,694,209
415,242 353,903
21,646,782 20,048,112
2024 2023
£ £
40,131 -
40,13 -
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10.

Staff (continved)

b. Severance payments

The academy trust poid 2 severance payments in the year (2023 -None), disclosed in the foilowing bands:

2024 2023
No. No.
£0 - £25000 1 -
£25,00 - £50,000 1 -
¢. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the acodemy trust during the year was as follows:
2024 2023
No. No.
Teachers 239 237
Administrative and support 37 368
Mangement 4 5
614 610

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WQas!

2024

No.

in the band £60,001 - £70,000 7

in the band £70,001 - £80,000 8

in the band £80.001 - £90,000 2

In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2
In the band £100,001 - £10,000 -

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 1

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 t

In the band £150,001 - £160,000 -

2023
No.
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10. Staff (continued)

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employse benefits (inciuding employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £480,248 (2023 - £426,797).

1. Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Human Resources

. Financicl Services

. Legat Services

. Education Support Services

. Purchasing & Procurement Services
. Facilities

. Audit Services

. insurance

. Communication Services

. ICT Technical Support & Helpdesk
. Marketing Services

. Health & Safety
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. Central services (continved)

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

The trust charges for these services based on 4.75% (2023 - 4.75%) of GAG income.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Staffordshire University Academy
Moorgate Primary Academy

John wWheeldon Primary Acodemiy
Littleton Green Community School
Boney Hay Primary Academy

Tynse! Porkes CE Primary Academy
St. Edward’s CE Academy Cheddleton
Perton Primary Academy

All Saints CE Primary Academy
Charnwood Primary Academy

St Augustine's CE Academy

St Peter's CE Academy

St Luke's CE Acodemy

Horton St Michoel's First School & Nursery
Dove CE Academy

Church Ectan Primary School

St Paul's CE First School

All Scints CE Primary Schoaol

St Leonards CofE First School

Little Aston Primary Academy

Westlands Primaory School

Total

2024 2023
£ £
176,187 168,379
64,244 61,063
108,185 102,914
83,367 79,752
44,060 40,941
31,889 29.821
36,277 35453
42,561 43346
18,980 17.287
49,599 47,276
16,635 15,067
16,425 17,125
43574 42,746
19,532 18,721
21,436 22120
23,452 22,992
29,771 28,498
17,303 19,014
20,042 18,542
48,918 45380
19,545 -
931,982 876,437
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12

13,

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an emplogment with the
academy trust. The Chief Executive Officer and other stoff Trustees oniy receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertoking the roles of principal and staff members under their controcts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was os follows:

2024 2023

£ £

James Capper, Chief Executive Officer and Remuneration 10,000 - @0,000 -

Accounting Officer (resigned gs a Trustee on & 15,000 85,000
October 2023)

Pension contributions paid 0 - 5,000 20,000 -

23,000

During the year ended 31 August 2024, nc Trustee expenses heve been incurred (2023 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to nsurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and
officers from clgims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,600,000. it is not possibie to quantify the Trustees ond officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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14.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2023
Additions

Acguired on conversion

Disposals

At 31 August 2024

Depreciation
At 1 September 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net book value

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

Freehold Long-term Furniture

lond and leasehold and Computer Motor

buildings property equipment equipment vehicles Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

- 53,909,137 3,146,893 1,751,200 27,469 58,834,699
- 460,899 845,392 92,803 - 1,399,094

3,717,000 - - - - 3,717,000
- - (357) - - (357

3,717,000 54,370,036 3,991,928 1,844,003 27,469 63,950,436
- 7,524,856 1,790,531 1,560,916 19,170 10,895,473
- 1,055,633 464 888 129,963 4,742 1,653,226
- 8,578,489 2,255 419 1,690,879 23,912 12,548,699

3,717,000 45,791,547 1,736,509 153,124 3,557 51,401,737
- 46,384,281 1,356,362 190,284 8,299 47939226

Included in freehold land ond buildings is a value of £748,000 for the freehold land at Westlands Primary School

which is not depreciated.
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15.  Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

QOther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Tax recoverable

16.  Current asset investments

Unlisted investments

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Cther creditors

Accruais and deferred income

2024 2023

£ £

28,233 44131

443 -

897,149 693,570
286,058 281,108
1,211,883 1,018,809
2024 2023

£ £
1,948,804 866,304
2024 2023
£ £

2,879 2879
584,752 799,43%
339,861 305,245
477,358 378,38
1,095,541 1,697,729
2,500,391 3,183,430

Other loans represent twe foans held with the ESFA that relate to the deficit local authority balance of John
wheeldon Primary Acaderny cnd St. Edword's CE Acaderny. Other joans are not subject to interest and will be

fully repaid by September 2027,
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18,

2024 2023
£ £
Deferred income ot 1 September 1,032,397 485,723
Resources deferred during the year 526,055 1,032,397
Amounts released from pravious periods (1,032,397) (485,723)
525,055 1,032,397

Amounts deferred relate to gront and trip income for the 2024/25 academic year.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one yeor

2024 2023
£ £

Cther loans 4,603 7.482

Other loans represent two loans held with the ESFA that relate to the deficit local cutherity balance of John
wheeldon Primary Academy and St Edward's CE Academy. Other loons are not subject to interest and will be
fully repoid by September 2027,
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19. Statement of funds

Balance at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out {Losses) August 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds -
all funds 2,934,952 1,760,41 (878,146) (496,802) - 5,320,415
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Gront (GAG) 1,092,682 20,301,026 (20,829,651} 174,606 - 738,663
Pupil Premium - 1,259,211 (1,259,211) - - -
Teachers Pension
Gront - 197,907 (197,907) - - -
Teoachers Pay
Gront - 359,454 (359,454) - - -
PE Grant - 337,91 {337,911} - - -
Early Years
Funding - 1,474, MM {1,474,711) - - -
SEN Funding - 983,511 (983,511) - - -
Qther DfE/ESFA
Graonts - 225,387 (225,387) - - -
Other
Government
Grants - 283,444 (283,444) - - -
LAC income - 53.945 (53,945) - - -
Other income - 796,236 (796,236) - - -
Mainstream
Schoois
Additional Grant - 656,333 (656,353) - - -
Funds Inherited
on Conversion - 184,865 228,135 - - 413,000
Pension reserve - (215,000) 515,000 - (300,000) -
1,092,682 26,898,941 {26,714,566) 174,606 (300,000) 1,151,663
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
202% Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) August 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA Grants 26,956,335 263,633 (451,931} (174,606) - 27,293,431
Assets
transferred
from LA on
conversion 20,865,368 3,717,000 {908,703) - - 23,673,665
Assets funded
from other
income 1,356,018 - (292,592) 496,802 - 1,560,228
49177721 4. 680,633 (1,653,226) 322,196 - 52,527,324
Total Restricted
funds 50,270,403 31,579,574  (28,367,792) 496,802  (300.000) 53,678,987
Total funds 53,205,355 33,339,985  (29,245,938) - (300,000) 56,999,402

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Unrestricted General Funds

This fund represents those rescurces which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objectives of the
academy trust of the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted General Funds
This fund represents grants received for the academy trust's operational activities and development.
Pension reserve

This fund represents grants received for the acaderny trust's share of the pension liability arising on the LGPS
pension fund.

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund
This fund relates to grant funding received from the ESFA to carry out works of a capital noture ond also the

donation of leasehold land, buildings, and playing fields from the local authority on @ 125 year lease and a small
ameunt of capital expenditure from GAG and other sources of income.
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19.

Statement of funds (continuved)

Comparative information In respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 Septermber Transfers Gamns/ 31 August
2022 income  Expenditure in/out {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted

funds
General Funds -

all funds 2,659,982 1,616,235 (925784 (415,481) - 2,934,952
Restricted

general funds
General Annua!

Grant (GAG) 1,515,345 18,909,816 (19,589,863) 257384 - 1,092,682
Pupil Premium - 1,217,227 Q217227 - - -
Tecachers Pension

Gront - 49234 (49,234) - - -
PE Grant - 331,220 (331,220) - - -
Early Years

Funding - 1,038,968 {1,038,968) - - -
SEN Funding - 830,796 (830,796) - - -
Other DIE/ESFA

Grants - 1,104,811 (1,104,811) - - -
Qther

Government

Grants - 95,332 (95,332} - - -
LAC income - 35160 (35160} - - -
Other Income - 731858 (731,858} - - -
Pension reserve (2.053,000) - {19,000) - 2,072,000 -

(537.655) 24,344,422 (25,043,469; 257384 2,072,000 1,092,682
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1Septernber Transfers Gains/ 37 August
2022 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DFE/ESFA Grants 26,084,339 1,145,989 (432,090) 158,097 - 26,956,335
Assets
transferred
from LA on
conversion 21,830,229 - {964.861) - - 20865368
Assets funded
from other
income 1549222 - (193,204) - - 1,556,018
49,463 790 1,145,989 (1.590,155) 158,097 - 45177721
Total Restricted
funds 48,926,135 2549041 (26,633,624) 415,481 2,072,000 50,270,403
Total funds 51586117 27,106,646 {27,559,408) - 2,072.000 53%,205.355

e ————  m— e A AL SIS SRR TI A
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19. Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

Staffordshire University Academy
Moorgate Primary Academy

John Wheeldon Primary Academy
Perton Primary Academy

St Edward's CF Academy Cheddleton
Tynset Parkes CE Primary Academy
Listleton Green Community School
Boney Hay Primary Academy

All Saint's CE Academy

Charnwood Primary Academy

St Augustine’s CE Academy

St Peter's CE Academy

St Luke's CE Academy

Horton St Michael's First School & Nursery
Dove CE Academy

Church Eaton Primary School

St Poul's CE First School

All Saints CE Primary School

St Leenards CofE First School

Little Aston Primary Academy
westiands Primary School

Central Services

Total before fixed gsset funds and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund

Total

2024 2023
£ £
409,422 326,752
334,102 256,663
420,737 475,481
521,596 327,261
76,845 62,438
104,112 68,087
336,787 509,538
142,218 104,188
99,380 125,77¢
571,985 480,593
55,810 40,995
157,247 118,260
120,392 125120
18,456 1.080
131,451 168,865
116,050 131,778
84,298 55,857
193,858 178,542
140,808 115,761
270,214 222146
160,019 -
206,31 92,479
4,472,078 4,027,634
52,527,324 49,177,721
56,999,402 53,205,355
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by eoch acadermy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and

educational Other
support staff support staff
COSsts costs
£ £
Staffordshire
University
Academy 3,354,233 553,798
Mocrgate
Primary
Academy 1,230,894 169,953
John Wheeldon
Primary
Academy 2140532 297484
Perton Primary
Academy 1,002,586 158,146
St Edword's CE
Academy
Cheddleton 810,982 82,787
Tynsel Parkes CE
Primary
Academy 674,741 105,667
Littleton Green
Community
Schoot 1954113 412 638
Boney Hoy
Primary
Academy 815,667 13,676
All Saint's CE
Academy 326,468 58130
Charnwood
Primary
Academy 973,597 117,286
St Augustine's CE
Academy 321,546 45206
St Peter's CE
Academy 301355 43,205

Educational
supplies
£

273,703

146,524

137,915

75,489

100,483

54495

107,772

57,719

43599

123,241

26,738

30302

Other costs
excluding
depreciation
£

995,352

201,532

367,741

188,584

250,546

113,653

350,732

167.074

104,653

191,276

83,198

87,724

Total
2024

5,177,086

1,748,903

2,943,672

1,424,805

1,244,798

948,556

2,865,255

1,154,136

532,890

1,405,740

476,688

462,586

Total
2023

4,757 815

1624498

2,880,946

1.346,480

1,193,324

910,433

2,657,242

1.086,929

467552

1324673

419,061

444 680
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19. Statement of funds (continved)

Teaching and

educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff  Educational excluding Total Totai
costs costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
St Luke's CE
Academy 800,265 62,483 77,683 250,334 1,190,765 1134,157
Horton St
Michael's First
School &
Nursery 336,583 44,373 72,854 88,232 542,042 485,742
Dove CE
Academy 450,278 50,774 51,644 103,560 656,256 535,748
Church Eaton
Primary School 459879 54,384 46,595 108,410 669,668 609,501
St Paul's CE First
School 591,818 79977 62,386 161,127 895,308 BR4166
All Soints CE
Primary School 326,67 44276 25,583 75,064 475,594 475,372
St Leonards CofE
First School 350,534 54,660 59,984 75,741 540,919 459102
Lit{le Aston
Primary
Acodemy 734,439 155,564 87,714 244 690 1,222,407 1,190,424
Westlands
Primary School 345,947 66,094 23877 82,570 518,488 -
Central Services 320,601 394,961 5,149 287395 1,008,106 1,081,408
Academy trust 18,624,129 3,165,522 1,695,849 4619168 28,104,668 25,969,253

b et
e ————————raeter

o —i o — e ————— T — A —————0 T —— ——TTT
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20.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analusis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £

Tongible fixed assets - - 31400737 51,401,737
Current assets 3320415 3,656,657 1125,587 8,102,659
Creditors due within one yeor - {2,500,391) - (2,500,391)
Creditors due in more than one year - (4,603) - (4,603)
Total 3,320,415 1151663 52527324 56,999,402

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 47939225 47,939,226
Current assets 2934952 4,283,594 1,238,495 8,457,041
Creditors due within one year - (3,183,430) - (3183430
Creditors due in more than one yeor - (748D - {7.482)
2934952 1,092,682 49177721 53,205,355

Total

Page 88



Docusign Envelope iD: 47520569-5A64-44CF-8FD0-AF594FCD497F

staffordshire University Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

21.  Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating octivities

Net income/{expenditure) for the pericd (as per Statement of Finencial

Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Copital grants from DfE and other copital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payoble
Defined benefit pansion scheme finance cost

Increase in debiors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Transfer on conversion - Land & Buildings

Transfer on Conversion - Pension

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

22.  cash fiows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in finoncing activities

2024 2023
£ £
4,094,047 (452,762)
1,653,226 1,590,155
(920,363)  (1145.989)
(118,040) (25,07%)
(515,000) (67.000)
(55,000) 86,000
(193,074) (76,876)
(683,039) 958,998
(3,717,000) -
270,000 -
(184,243) 867,453
2024 2023
£ £
(2.879) (2.879)
(2,879) (2,879

I
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23, Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from Investments
Purchase of tangible assets
Proceeds/(purchase) of liquid investments

Copital gronts from DFE Group

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

24.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand ond at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

25.  Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Debt due within T year
Debt due after T year

Liquid investments

2024 2023

£ £

118,040 25,073
(1,399,094) {891,0086)

(1,082,143) 377744

920,363 1,145,989

(1,442,834) 657,800

2024 2023

£ £

4,941,972 6,571,928

4,941,972 6,571,928

At

September Other non- At 31 August
2023 Cash flows cash changes 2024

£ £ £ £
6,571,928 (1,629,956} - 4,941,972
(2,879 2,879 (2,879) (2,879)
(7.482) - 2,879 (4,603)
866,304 1,082,500 - 1,948,804
7,427,871 (544,577) - 6,883,294
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26,

Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 April 2024 Westlands Primary School converted to acedemy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were tronsferred to Staffordshire University Academies Trust from

Staffordshire County Council for £NIL consideration,

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liobilities
transferred were valued at their fair vaiue and recognised in the Balkance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income
frorm Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from locol authority on conversion,

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities,

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
£ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Freehold land and buildings - 3,717,000 3,717,000
Current assets
Cash - representing budget surplus on other schoot funds 184,865 - 184,865
Cash - representing capital income - 43,270 43,270
Current ligbilities
LGPS pension (deficit) (270,000} - (270,000}
Net (ligbilities)/assets (85,135) 3,760,270 3,675,135

The above net assets include £228,135 that were transferred as cash.

The freehold land and buiidings in relation to Westlands Primary Scheol were trensferred to Staffordshire
University Acodemies Trust from The Newcastle Co-Operative Trust for £nil consideration. The Newcastle Co
Operative Trust had previously received the freehold fand and buildings from Staffordshire County Council in
anticipotion of o conversion of the school into the Trust. The basis for this valuation is detailed in the accounting

policies note 1.

The LGPS pension deficit represents the net position at 1 April 2024 in respect of employees of the maintained
school and have transferred to the multi aeademy trust. The basis for this valuation is detailed in note 1 and note

28.
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27.

28,

Capital commitments

2024 2023
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed ossets 73,90 -

Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Stoffordshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest octuarial vaiuation of the TPS reloted to the period ended 31 March 2020 ond of the LGPS 31 March
2022

Contributions amounting to £465,897 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £372,321} and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Schame Regulotions 2014, Membership is automatic for full-time tecchers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS followling enrofment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as o percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Excheguer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parlioment.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is 10 ensure scheme costs are recognrised and manaoged
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuariad valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 Ociober 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by
HMT, applying a notienal investment return bosed on 1.7% above the rote of CPL The key elements of the
vaiuation outcome are:

. empicyer contribution rotes set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including o 0.08%
administration levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost controt
result is such that no change in member benefits is needed.

. total scheme ligbilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £262,000 millien and notional assets (estimated
future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£222,200 million, giving a noticnal past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2.569,770 (2025 - £2129,889).

A copy of the vaivation report and supperting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teocherspensions.co.uk/news/emp!ogers/2019/04/teochers-pensions-voluotion—report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust is unable 1o identify its share of the underlying assets ond lichilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy
trust has taken advantege of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as
if it were o defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above, the information available on the

scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held In separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £2,058,000 (2023 - £1,602,000), of
which employer's contributions totalled £1,683,000 (2023 - £1,314,000) and employees’ contributions totolled £
375,000 (2023 - £288,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 26.2 per cent for employers and
55-12.5% per cent for employees.

As descrived in note 2 the LGPS obligation relotes to the employees of the wcademy trust, who were the
employees transferred as port of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were
eligivle to, ond dig, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the ccademy trust of the
bolance sheet date.

Parfiorent has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarontee that, in the event of
acodemy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
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28.

Pension commitments (continved)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumption (CPD

Commutation of pensions to lump sums - pre April 2008

Commutation of pensions to lump sums - post April 2008

2024
%

315
2.65
5.00
2.65

65
65

2023
%

345
295
520
295
65
65

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates, The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring teday
Males

Fernales

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Femules

Sensitivity analysis on the obligation

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrecse
CPirate +0.1%

CPirate -01%

Sclary rate +0.1%

Solary rate -0.1%

2024 2023
Years Years
19.3 19.4
238 238
205 206
253 253
2024 2023
£000 £000
(462} (395)
462 395
765 643
(765) (643)
454 368
(454) (368)
18 35
(18} (35
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The academy trust's share of the ossets in the scheme was!

Equities
Gllts
Properiy

Cash and other liquid assets

Totat market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,769.280 (2023 - £221,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are os follows:

Current service cost
Interest ihncome

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

At 31 August

At 31 August

2024 2023
£ £
13,846,000 11,395,000
5,841,000 3,912,000
1,515,000 1,360,000
433,000 340,000
21,635,000 17,007,000
2024 2023
£ £
(1,168,000) (1,247,000}
941,000 658,000
55,000 (744,000
{172,000) (1,333,000

[ ————
f——————
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28.

Pension commitments {continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligaticns were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £

At 1 September 16,084,000 16,871,000
Transfer in of schoo! joining the trust 893,000 -
interest cost 886,000 744,000
Employee contributions 375,000 288,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 71,000 (2,852,000}
Benefits poid (355,000) (214,000)
Current service cost 1,168,000 1,247,000
At 31 August 19,122,000 16,084,000
Changes in the fair value of the acodemy trust's share of scheme ossets were as foliows:

2024 2023

£ £

At 1 September 17,007,000 14,818,000
Transfer In of schoel joining the trust 623,000 -
Interest income 941,000 658,000
Actuarial gains 1,361,000 143,000
Employer contributions 1,683,000 1,314,000
Employee contributions 375,000 288,000
Benefits paid {355,000) (214,000}
At 31 August 21,635,000 17,007,000

As detailed in note 2, the surplus asset of £2.513,000 {2023- £923,000) has not been recognised in the financial
statements ond the movement in surplus of £1,590,000 {2023 - £923.000) has aiso not been recognised during

the year.
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29,

30.

3.

32.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the acodemy trust had commitments to make future minimum lease paymenis under nen-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Not iater than 1 year 42,367 41,051
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 71,561 63,221
113,928 104,272

i
e,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company In the event of it
being wound up while he/she is ¢ member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases 1o be a

member,

Related party transactions

Owing 1o the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector crgonisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after
1 April 2019 and obtaining their approvol where required, ond with the academy trust's financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating 1o connected and related party transactions.

During the year the Trust purchased tultion and education improvement services, learning resources and
governance reviews from Staffordshire University totalling £15,065 (202%: £15,329), the amount outstanding in
creditors ot the year end was £5,295 (2023: £Nil). The trust also made sales during the year to Staffordshire
University totalling £21,405 (2023 £30,052), the omount cutstanding in debtors at the year end was ENif (2023
£1,860). In entering Into the transactions the trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy Trust

Handbook 2023

Trustees' remuneration and expenses are already disclosed in note 12,

Agency arrangements

The ccademy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an ogent for ESFA. In the accounting year
ended 31 August 2024 the trust received £12,152 and disbursed £9,209 from the fund. An amount of £6773 1s
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is being carried forwerd for distribution in

2024/2025.
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